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FINANCIAL RIGHLIGHTS

Results HK$ Million HK$ Million
Revenue 2,109 1,757
Profit before depreciation, amortisation, interest and tax 334 236
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 230 155

Basic earnings per share

HK46.0 cents

HK31.0 cents

Dividend per share

— Interim HK18 cents HK15 cents
— Final HK12 cents HK6 cents

2018 2017
Financial Position HK$ Million HK$ Million
Total assets 1,771 1,529
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 197 143
Shareholders’ equity 1,271 1,110
Net assets per share HK$2.54 HK$2.22

REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
HK$ MILLION HK$ MILLION
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

- For The Financial Year Ended 31 March 2018 -

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended
31 March 2018.

GLOBAL ECONOMY

The global economy was trending positively in general
in 2017, with a better-than-expected growth rate of
approximately 3.7%. The international community had
been concerned that political conflicts and the refugee
crisis in Europe coupled with the progress of the
Brexit would send the European economy into
prolonged doldrums. However, political developments
in Europe turned out to be relatively stable in 2017,
as the camps that stood for Europe’s unity, stability
and openness gained the upper hand in political
elections, while the pace of recovery of the Eurozone
economy also exceeded expectations. In the
meantime, the growth rate of international trade
picked up notably in defiance of the counter-

globalisation trend, making a positive impact on the
resurgence of the global manufacturing industry and
the world economy in general. Benefiting from the
increase in international demand and robust growth of
China and emerging economies of developing Asian
nations, the Group has positive expectations for global
economic development in the coming year.

During the year under review, the Group reported
excellent results with revenue increasing substantially
by 20% to over HK$2 billion and continuously
improving profit margin as the Group seized the
excellent opportunities afforded by last year's global
economic growth in a timely manner to achieve co-
growth with customers.

INDUSTRY AND MARKET REVIEW

High-end fashion

As a result of the continuous shift of retail spending
towards higher-end products, coupled with an
increasing focus on health and fitness as well as
generally changing lifestyles and spending patterns,
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fashionable outdoor sports and sportswear have been
enjoying spectacular development. While typically
concerned with functional qualities such as windproof
and waterproof performance, light-weight, breathability
and warmth, consumers have also become more
discerning about the aesthetics and fashion of
apparel designs.

As market demands for sportswear have become
increasingly diversified, leading sportswear brands and
manufacturers have been gearing up their effort in
tandem with market changes to produce more high-
quality leisure sportswear with equal emphasis on
functionality and fashion to meet market demands. In
this connection, the Group has been invited by major
customer NIKE to become one of the suppliers for
NIKE LAB, a specialty store offering limited-edition

products underpinned by new concepts in sales and
technologies. The appointment has come as a fine
testimony to our proven quality in technology and
production, as we look forward to tapping the
enormous sports fashion market together with
our customers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Upgrade and transformation

Because of the need to respond swiftly to fast-
changing consumer requirements, top international
sportswear brands tend to work with suppliers who
are willing to invest in advanced technology and able
to deliver with shorter lead-time. Apart from active
efforts to enhance its capacity for mechanised and
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automated production, the Group has also sought to
consolidate its production processes and shorten its
lead-time to achieve better efficiency, quality and cost
control through vertical integration and optimisation of
resource allocation aided by the computerised ERP
system, in close tandem with the development of
its customers.

OUTLOOK

Capacity expansion

The Group's production bases are located in China and
Indonesia. Since the past few years, our Indonesian
and Jiangxi production bases have been undergoing
capacity expansion to meet the growth of the
sportswear market and, thanks to the strong support
of our customers, such production facilities have
continued to operate close to their maximum capacity.
The management believes the sportswear market will
remain one of the major driving forces for global retail
growth in the coming vyears. In order to seize
opportunities presented by this market trend, the
Group entered into negotiations for the acquisition of
a production facility located in Vietnam during the year
under review, with a view to further reducing the risk
of concentration of production bases, increasing
flexibility in production and enhancing our production
capacity in anticipation of ongoing market growth.

The Vietnamese plant was officially incorporated into
Eagle Nice Group on 1 June 2018. The plant is
expected to add substantial driving force to the
Group’s production to provide additional productivity in
the coming vyear.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group values and cares for each and every one of
its staff members. We also believe that health and
wealth are fundamental to anyone's well-being. During
the vyear, we invited local health authorities and
hospitals to conduct free gynaecological checks at its
plants for female workers of appropriate age, with the
aim of enhancing staff awareness for the prevention
of gynaecological diseases so that they could stay
healthy and fit to enjoy mutual growth with
the Group.

Environmental protection is a matter of important
concern for the Group, which has always supported
related community programmes. During the year, we
launched an outreach campaign entitled “Walk for the
Protection of the Mother River” in association with
local non-profit-making groups in Chaozhou and
Shantou and organised our local employees to join the
walk. Through the campaign, we advocated for the
protection of Hanjiang, the “Mother River”
of Chaozhou and Shantou in promotion of
low-carbon green life and environmental protection
as part of our effort to support community
environmental programmes, enhance employees’
environmental awareness and facilitate the Group's
sustainable development.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express
heartfelt gratitude to my fellow members of the Board
and the management for their hard work and
dedication during the year, and to the Shareholders,
suppliers, business partners and customers for their
support. We are maintaining a high dividend payout
ratio, as we stand by our promise to reward the
Shareholders whilst focusing on business development.
Meanwhile, sincere appreciation is also due to all
members of our staff for their diligent efforts during
the past year.

Chung Yuk Sing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Performance

For the year under review, the Group reported record-high total sales of HK$2,109.4 million, representing a
substantial increase of 20.0% or HK$352.1 million as compared to total sales of HK$1,757.3 million for last
year. Gross profit for the year increased by 26.5% to HK$405.8 million (2017: HK$320.9 million), and gross
profit margin for the year rose by 0.9% from 18.3% to 19.2%. The Group’s profit before tax increased by
47.8% to HK$273.7 million (2017: HK$185.2 million), and profit margin before tax also increased by 2.5% from
10.5% to 13.0%. The substantial growth was mainly due to a gain of HK$47.1 million (2017: Nil) arising from
the deregistration of a subsidiary in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC”) incurred during the vyear.
Excluding such deregistration gain and other income and gains, the Group's operating profit before tax rose by
27.6% to HK$213.7 million (2017: HK$167.5 million) and the Group's operating profit margin before tax rose by
0.6% from 9.5% to 10.1%.

As the Group continued to optimise its marketing strategy, satisfactory performance in sales and profit was
reported during the year under review. To strive for additional market shares, the Group continued to increase
its production capacity through expansion of production lines, upgrade of production techniques and automation
of production processes. Moreover, the Group adjusted its business strategy during the year. In the past, the
Group had focused on functional products for the autumn and winter seasons, such that the peak production
season for the Group had been the first half of the year given the requirement to deliver autumn and winter
products before the winter season began, and the production capacity had not been fully utilised during the
second half of the year. To address this problem, the Group shifted part of its production capacity to
manufacture products less susceptible to the seasonal factor during the year under review and reduce the
proportion of functional products for the autumn and winter seasons. On one hand, as a result of benefitting
from efficient use of raw materials with increase in sales volume, the Group’s overall raw material costs
decreased year-on-year consequently, improving the gross profit margin of the Group. Nevertheless, on the
other hand, with the continuous increase in workers’ wage and welfare, the increase in the Group's
manufacturing costs had eroded the gross profit margin, resulting in a net increase of the Group's gross profit
margin of 0.9%.

As a result of the increase in sales, the Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by HK$11.0 million,
comparable to that of last year as a percentage of total sales. Administrative expenses increased by HK$26.8
million mainly due to increase in staff salaries on annual reviews and increase in provision for bonus in line
with the Group's excellent results for the year under review. Interest expenses for the year increased by
HK$0.9 million (or 32.7%) compared to last year in line with the increase in the average outstanding balance of
bank loans and the average interest rate on bank loans during the year. In respect of taxation, the Group's
overall tax expenses increased by HK$13.6 million (or 45.3%). Excluding the gain on deregistration of a PRC
subsidiary, the effective tax rate during the year was 19.3% (2017: 16.2%). The increase in effective tax rate
was due to the utilisation of deferred tax asset arising from tax losses of Jiangxi Plant recorded in prior year.

Other income and gains amounted to HK$12.8 million (2017: HK$17.6 million), comprising mainly financial award
granted by the PRC Government amounting to HK$3.9 million (2017: HK$8.3 million), gains on disposal of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease payments amounting to HK$2.4 million (2017: HK$5.9
million) and bank interest income of HK$1.8 million (2017: HK$2.1 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$230.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2018,
representing an increase of 48.3% compared to HK$155.1 million for last year. Net profit margin increased by
2.1% from 8.8% to 10.9%. Excluding the gain on deregistration of a PRC subsidiary and other income and
gains, the Group’'s net profit rose by 23.7% to HK$170.1 million (2017: HK$137.5 million) and the Group's net
profit margin rose by 0.3% from 7.8% to 8.1%. Basic earnings per share for the year amounted to HK46.0
cents compared to HK31.0 cents for last year. The Board proposed to recommend payment of a final dividend
of HK12 cents (2017: HK6 cents) per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK18 cents per share paid
during the year, the dividend payout ratio for the year was 65.2% (2017: 67.6%).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year under review, the Group continued to maintain a healthy liquidity position. The Group generally
finances its operations with internally generated resources and banking facilities. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group had cash and bank balances amounted to HK$222.9 million (31 March 2017: HK$290.9 million) mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi (“RMB"), US dollars and Indonesian Rupiah.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's banking facilities were supported by the corporate guarantees executed by
the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company to the extent of HK$627.1 million (31 March 2017:
HK$647.8 million), of which an aggregate amount of HK$196.8 million (31 March 2017: HK$143.1 million) was
utilised.

The management believes that the Group’s existing financial resources will be sufficient to meet its existing
operations as well as existing and future expansion plans and, if necessary, the Group will be able to obtain
additional financing with favourable terms. There is no material effect of seasonality on the Group’s borrowing
requirements.

Gearing ratio of the Group is defined as the net debt (represented by bank borrowings net of cash and bank
balances) divided by shareholders’ equity. The Group’s gearing ratios as at 31 March 2018 is not applicable (31
March 2017: not applicable).

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group has transactional currency exposures as substantial portion of sales or purchases are denominated in
US dollars and RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from such exposure to US dollars
and RMB. Although the Group tries to maintain the balance of its sales and purchases in the same currency, as
the foreign currency risks generated from the sales and purchases can only be partially set off with each other,
financial instrument may be employed when necessary to manage the Group’s exposure to the potential
exchange rate risk.

The Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange exposures and use appropriate tools to manage and
minimise its foreign exchange risk.

10



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED &35 (B BR) =R B IR A Al ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —F—N\F&FH

J

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
There was a deregistration of a subsidiary during the year ended 31 March 2018. During the year ended 31
March 2017, there was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: Nil).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 March 2018, Pro Kingtex Industrial Company Limited (the “Vendor”) (an indirectly non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited (“Yue Yuen”) (stock code: 00551)), whose shares are listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and Jespar Age
Limited (the “Purchaser”) (a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which and subject to the satisfaction of the
conditions set out therein, the Vendor has agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has agreed to purchase, the entire
shareholding interests in two companies incorporated in the British Virgin Islands for a consideration of
US$31,617,998 (equivalent to approximately HK$246.6 million) (the “Acquisition”). As the Acquisition
contemplated under the Sale and Purchase Agreement constitutes a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), it was subject to the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 21 May 2018, the independent shareholders of
the Company had passed an ordinary resolution to approve the Acquisition and completion of the Acquisition
took place on 1 June 2018.

Details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder have been disclosed

in the announcements of the Company dated 29 March 2018, 3 April 2018, 27 April 2018, and 1 June 2018
respectively, and the circular of the Company dated 30 April 2018.

11
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: Nil). The
Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

As at As at

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000

Contracted, but not provided for:
Construction of factories and purchases of machinery and equipment

for the investment in Jiangxi Province, the PRC 2,236 14,471

Purchases of machinery and equipment for the investment in
Indonesia 912 2,578
Purchases of items of machinery and equipment 13,636 4,006
16,784 21,055

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's banking facilities were supported by the corporate guarantees executed by
the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company to the extent of HK$627.1 million (31 March 2017:
HK$647.8 million), of which an aggregate amount of HK$196.8 million (31 March 2017: HK$143.1 million) was
utilised.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed a total of approximately 9,000 employees including directors (31
March 2017: approximately 8,600). Total employee benefit expenses including directors’ and chief executive's
emoluments were HK$546.0 million for the year under review (2017: HK$451.6 million).

The employees including directors are remunerated based on their work performance, professional experiences
and the prevailing industry practice. The Group also makes contributions to the statutory mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong and to the pension scheme for the employees of the Group in the PRC and Indonesia.

12
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chung Yuk Sing, aged 57, has been the Chairman of the Board and Executive Director of the Company since
October 2002. He has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since June 2013. He is
the founder of the Group and a director of other members of the Group. Mr. Chung provides leadership to the
Board and is responsible for corporate development. He has been accredited as “Honorary Citizen of Shantou
City” in the PRC. Mr. Chung holds several public positions, including the Honorary President of Shantou
Overseas Sodality, Honorary President of Shantou Overseas Communication Association and Honorary President
of Social Security and Welfare Association of Lunghu, Shantou City.

Chen Hsiao Ying, aged 54, has joined the Group as Executive Director of the Company since October 2007. He
was Chief Executive Officer of the Company from October 2007 to June 2013. He has been appointed as the
Vice Chairman of the Board since August 2013. He is also a director of other members of the Group. Mr. Chen
had worked as Factory Manager in a sportswear manufacturing and trading company in Taiwan since 1981 prior
to founding Actex Garment Co., Limited, a company specializing in the manufacturing and trading of
sportswear, in 1997. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of manufacturing and management experience in the garment
industry. He is in charge of the corporate strategy, management, business development and manufacturing
management of the Group. He is a brother of Ms. Chen Li Ying, a member of senior management of the
Group.

Chen Fang Mei, Christina, aged 55, has joined the Group as Executive Director of the Company since May
2009. She is responsible for overseeing the financial matters of the Group. She had been the Spokesperson
and Vice President of Pou Chen Corporation (stock code: 9904) (“Pou Chen”), a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation, during 2004 to 2013. She graduated from Soochow University in Taiwan in 1986
and holds a Bachelor's Degree in International Business. Ms. Chen was Vice President and Head of
Underwriting of Citibank Securities (Taiwan) Limited from 2001 to 2004. She has over 20 years of experience in
the investment and securities industries in Taiwan. Ms. Chen had been an executive director of Symphony
Holdings Limited (stock code: 01223), a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange from July
2009 to June 2015.

Lee Cheng Chuan, aged 54, has joined the Group as Executive Director of the Company since September
2016. He is a Vice President of Yue Yuen and its subsidiaries (the “Yue Yuen Group”). He joined Pou Chen in
1989 and is currently in charge of the integration of garment manufacturing business of Yue Yuen Group. Mr.
Lee graduated from National Taipei Institute of Technology (now known as National Taipei University of
Technology) in Taiwan in 1986. Mr. Lee has over 25 years of experience in the business development and
production management of international branded footwear market.

13
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Directors” and Senior Management's Biographies (continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chan Cheuk Ho, aged 51, obtained a master's degree in Business Administration from the University of
Manchester in 2003. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Chan has more than 20 years of experience in accounting and finance. He has been an executive director of
Pine Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 01079), a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, since June 2017. He has been Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since November
2002.

Lu Chi Chant, aged 66, is currently an independent director of Lealea Enterprise Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1444)
and Hannstar Board Corp. (stock code: 5469), all listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He is also
an independent director of Nyquest Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 6494), a company listed on the Taiwan
GreTai Securities Market. From June 2014 to May 2017 and from June 2015 to June 2018, he was an
independent director of K Laser Technology Inc. (stock code: 2461) and Li Peng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 1447) respectively, all listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. Mr. Lu has been an independent
non-executive director of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (stock code: 00157), a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, since December 2015. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Mechanical
Engineering from National Taiwan University in 1974 and passed the professional qualification examinations in
Taiwan for certified public accountant in 1983 and for securities investment analyst in 1988. During the period
from 1976 to 1984, Mr. Lu worked as a mechanical engineer in Formosa Plastics Corporation, a company
established in Taiwan which is principally engaged in the manufacturing of plastic raw materials and products.
He joined Deloitte & Touche Taiwan as an auditor in 1984 and became a partner there in 1986. Mr. Lu left
Deloitte & Touche Taiwan in 2011. He has been appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company since February 2013.

Tham Kit Wan, aged 57, is a qualified lawyer of Hong Kong, England and Wales and Singapore. Ms. Tham
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Laws from The National University of Singapore in June 1983 and a degree of
Master of Laws (International Business Law) from The City University of Hong Kong in November 2006. She
has more than 25 years of experience in corporate finance and the commercial and banking fields. She was a
director of Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited (formerly traded under the stock code: 349 of the Stock
Exchange) and Union Bank Finance Limited from 1989 to 1993. She was the Head of Legal Department of K.
Wah Construction Materials Limited (now known as Galaxy Entertainment Group (stock code: 00027)), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, from 1998 to 2007. She served as Legal Counsel and
Senior Vice President of Symphony Holdings Limited (stock code: 01223), a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange, from 2007 to 2015. From 2014 to 2015, she also served as Company Secretary of Pak
Tak International Limited (stock code: 02668), a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Currently, she is in private legal practice as a consultant at Messrs. David Lo & Partners, a law firm in Hong
Kong. Ms. Tham is a regular Lex Omnibus speaker on topics related to corporate and commercial law in Hong
Kong. She has been appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since September 2016.

14
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Directors” and Senior Management’s Biographies (continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Tsai Nai Chung, aged 62, has joined the Group as Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company since July
2013. Mr. Tsai has over 30 years of manufacturing and management experience in shoes and apparel
manufacturing industry. Mr. Tsai had been President and Vice President of certain companies within the group
of Yue Yuen. By managing the factories in USA, Mexico, the PRC and Vietnam of Yue Yuen, he has extensive
and global experience in manufacturing industry.

Chung Chi Kit, aged 29, joined the Group as Special Assistant to Chairman in April 2015 and was promoted to
Business Managing Director in March 2016. He is responsible for business planning and development of the
Group. He was the Chief Executive Officer of a wine distribution company up to March 2015. He graduated
from Nottingham Trent University in 2011 and holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting and Finance. He
obtained a master's degree in Marketing and a master’'s degree in International Business from the Royal
Holloway, University of London and Hult International Business School in 2012 and 2013 respectively. He is the
son of Mr. Chung Yuk Sing, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company.

Tsang Sau Fan, aged 51, has joined the Group since March 1996 and was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in October 2002. She resigned as Executive Director of the Company in May 2009. Currently, she
is General Manager of the Group and is responsible for sales and marketing and administration management of
the Group. She has over 20 years of experience in sales of garment products. Prior to joining the Group, she
worked as a merchandiser in a garment manufacturing company in Hong Kong.

Chen Li Ying, aged 63, has joined the Group as Executive Director of the Company since October 2007 and
resigned as Executive Director of the Company in May 2009. Currently, she is General Manager of the Group
and is responsible for sales and marketing and manufacturing management of the Group. She is also a director
of other members of the Group. She graduated from Ming Chuan University in Taiwan and had worked as an
auditor in an accounting firm in Taiwan for around 5 years after graduation. She worked in the sales and
marketing department of a sportswear manufacturing and trading company in Taiwan from 1981 to 1996 before
she joined Actex Garment Co., Limited, a company founded by Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying, in 2001. She has over 25
years of manufacturing and management experience in the garment industry. She is the sister of Mr. Chen
Hsiao Ying, an Executive Director of the Company.

Woo Man Chi, aged 46, has joined the Group as Financial Controller since May 2005 and has been appointed
as Company Secretary of the Company since September 2005. She is responsible for the accounting, finance
and compliance related functions of the Group. She previously worked in a reputable international accounting
firm, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in Hong Kong for five years. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in a
manufacturing company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange as Assistant Financial Controller. She
has more than 15 years of experience in accounting and financial management. Ms. Woo holds a bachelor’s
degree in accounting from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. She is a practising member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the state of affairs of the Group's financial position
at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 84 to 168.

An interim dividend of HK18 cents per ordinary share was paid on 15 December 2017. The Directors
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK12 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders on the register of members on 27 August 2018. Details are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements is set out below.

Results
Year ended 31 March

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue 2,109,422 1,757,316 1,534,592 1,517,109 1,483,774
Profit before tax 273,666 185,155 152,186 130,311 37,232
Income tax expense (43,654) (30,036) (27,057) (25,128) (15,362)
Profit for the year 230,012 155,119 125,129 105,183 21,870
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Report of the Directors (continued)

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

Assets and liabilities

As at 31 March

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current assets 871,380 763,544 778,679 812,854 856,587
Current assets 899,443 765,170 779,840 756,567 698,965
Current liabilities (470,249) (395,347) (439,152) (462,019) (526,636)
Net current assets 429,194 369,823 340,688 294,548 172,329
Non-current liabilities (29,267) (23,018) (20,017) (19,871) (16,999)

1,271,307 1,110,349 1,099,350 1,087,531 1,011,917

The above summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in either the authorised or issued share capital of the Company during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’'s listed
securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2018, the Company’'s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$810,424,000. The amount of
HK$810,424,000 includes the Company’'s share premium account and capital reserve of HK$515,674,000 in
aggregate at 31 March 2018, which may be distributed provided that immediately following the date on which
a dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group’'s five largest customers accounted for approximately 99.5%
of the Group’s total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein accounted for
approximately 66.7%.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 23.5% of the Group's total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately
6.4%.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's
five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chung Yuk Sing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying (Vice Chairman)

Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina

Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho

Mr. Lu Chi Chant

Ms. Tham Kit Wan

In accordance with article 87(1) of the Company's articles of association, Mr. Chung Yuk Sing, Mr. Chan Cheuk
Ho and Mr. Lu Chi Chant, will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho, Mr. Lu Chi Chant
and Ms. Tham Kit Wan, and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 15 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Group’'s emolument policy is formulated based on the performance of individual employees and is
reviewed regularly. Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide discretionary bonuses to its
employees as an incentive for their contribution to the Group. The primary goal of the emolument policy with
regard to the remuneration packages of the Group's executive directors is to enable the Group to retain and
motivate executive directors by linking their compensation with performance as measured against corporate
objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group’s remuneration packages include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses and
housing benefits.

The Directors’ fees are subject to the Shareholders’ approval and the Board was authorised to fix the Directors’
fee at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to the Directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of association of the Company provides that for the time being acting in relation to any of the
affairs of the Company, every Director and other officers shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, losses, damages and
expenses which they may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done about the execution of the duties of
their respective office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company had arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and other officers of the Group for the year under review.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ")), which have been notified to the Company pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which any such Directors or
chief executive were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"), were as follows:

The Company

Percentage of

Number of shares held the Company’s

Name of Director Capacity Long position Short position issued capital

Mr. Chung Yuk Sing Interest in a controlled 72,650,000 — 14.54
corporation (Note)

Beneficial owner 12,600,000 — 2.52

Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying Beneficial owner 31,880,800 — 6.38

Note: These shares are held by Time Easy Investment Holdings Limited (“Time Easy”). The entire issued share capital of Time Easy
is held by Mr. Chung Yuk Sing.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors and chief executive had registered an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the following persons, other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares held the Company’s
Name Capacity Long position Short position issued capital
Time Easy Beneficial owner 72,650,000 — 14.54
(Note 1)
Pou Chen Interest in a controlled 192,000,000 = 38.42
corporation (Note 2)
Wealthplus Holdings Limited Interest in a controlled 192,000,000 = 38.42
("Wealthplus”) corporation (Note 2)
Yue Yuen Interest in a controlled 192,000,000 — 38.42
corporation (Note 2)
Pou Hing Industrial Co. Ltd. Interest in a controlled 192,000,000 = 38.42
("Pou Hing”) corporation (Note 2)
Great Pacific Investments Beneficial owner 192,000,000 = 38.42
Limited (“Great Pacific”) (Note 2)
Notes:
1. The entire issued share capital of Time Easy is held by Mr. Chung Yuk Sing.
2. The 192,000,000 shares were held by Great Pacific which was wholly-owned by Pou Hing. The entire issued share capital of

Pou Hing was held by Yue Yuen in which Wealthplus and Win Fortune Investment Ltd. (“Win Fortune”) held an interest of
46.89% and 3.09% respectively. Wealthplus and Win Fortune are in turn wholly-owned by Pou Chen. Accordingly, Pou Hing,
Yue Yuen, Wealthplus, Win Fortune and Pou Chen are all deemed to be interested in the 192,000,000 shares held by Great
Pacific.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no person, other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
at least 25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date of this
report.

21



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED [ 35 (BIBR) =B IR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —F—N\F&#H

Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

Interests of the Directors in a competing business required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules during the year under review are as follows:

Nature of
competing
Name of Director Name of company business Nature of interest Appointment date
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan Yue Yuen (Note 1) Garment As a vice president June 2014
("Mr. Lee") manufacturing
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Din Tsun Holding Garment As a director April 2011
Christina (“Ms. Chen”) Co., Ltd. (“"Din Tsun") manufacturing
Mr. Lee (Note 2) As a director August 2016
Ms. Chen Faith Year Investments Limited Garment As a director August 2010
Mr. Lee ("Faith Year”) (Note 2) manufacturing  As a director August 2016
Ms. Chen Pro Kingtex Industrial Garment As a director August 2010
Mr. Lee Co., (HK) Ltd. manufacturing  As a director August 2016
("Pro Kingtex") (Note 2)
Ms. Chen Year Fortune Group Limited Garment As a director October 2016
Mr. Lee ("Year Fortune”) (Note 2) manufacturing  As a director October 2016
Mr. Lee Tien Pou International Ltd Garment As a director October 2016
("Tien Pou") (Note 3) manufacturing

Notes:

Yue Yuen is a company listed on the Stock Exchange and is a substantial shareholder of the Company. The principal business
activities of Yue Yuen Group are manufacturing and sales of footwear products, and retail and distribution of sportswear
products. Based on the published annual report of Yue Yuen, Yue Yuen recorded total revenue of around US$6 billion for its
footwear manufacturing business for the year ended 31 December 2017. As the Group is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of sportswear and garments, the businesses of Yue Yuen Group and the Group potentially compete
with each other.

Given that Yue Yuen Group and the Group are operated by different and separate management team, the Directors consider
that the Company is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length with Yue Yuen Group. Having
considered the nature and extent of Mr. Lee's participation in business of Yue Yuen Group and the Group, the Directors
believe that there is unlikely to be any significant competition caused to the business of the Group.

Din Tsun is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 4 January 2005 and had been held as to 50% by Yue Yuen
Group and 50% by two individuals prior to 1 October 2017. On 1 October 2017, Yue Yuen Group disposed of its entire interest
in Din Tsun but acquired from Din Tsun its 70% interest in Faith Year and Year Fortune. After completion of the acquisition,
Yue Yuen Group became interested in 95% of the shareholding interests of Faith Year and Year Fortune. Faith Year owns the
entire shareholding interests of Pro Kingtex. Year Fortune, Faith Year and its subsidiaries (“Those Companies”) are investee
companies of the Yue Yuen Group. The principal business activities of Those Companies are apparel manufacturing of
sportswear and casual and outdoor clothes. Based on information provided by Those Companies, it recorded US$56 million in
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017. Both Ms. Chen and Mr. Lee had been nominated to the board of directors of
Din Tsun and Those Companies to represent the interests of Yue Yuen Group as an investor and both of them resigned as
directors of Din Tsun with effect from 27 September 2017.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

2. (continued)
While Ms. Chen is not involved in the operation of Those Companies, Mr. Lee participates in the apparel manufacturing business
of Those Companies. Mr. Lee has confirmed that he is mindful of his duty to avoid conflict of interest. In cases where conflict
of interest situation arises, Mr. Lee will refrain from taking part in the decision making process and will abstain from voting on
the relevant resolution in board meeting. On this basis and given that Those Companies have its own management personnel
other than Mr. Lee and that Ms. Chen is not involved in their operations, the Directors believe that the Company is capable of
carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from Those Companies.

& Tien Pou is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 June 2016 and is held as to 40% by Yue Yuen Group and 60%
by an independent corporation. The principal business activities of Tien Pou are apparel manufacturing of sportswear and casual
and outdoor clothes. Based on information provided by Tien Pou, it recorded US$41 million in revenue for the year ended 31
December 2017. Mr. Lee has been nominated to the board of directors of Tien Pou to represent the interest of the Yue Yuen
Group as an investor.

Given that Mr. Lee is not involved in the operation of Tien Pou, the Directors believe that the Company is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from Tien Pou.

Subsequent to the year under review on 1 June 2018, Year Fortune, Faith Year and Pro Kingtex have become
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Please refer to the section headed “Business Review — Event
after the Reporting Period” in this report for details.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their respective associates was interested in, apart from the
Group’s business, any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out in pages 26 to 37 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 including the challenges/
uncertainties and the ways to tackle them together with a discussion on the Group’s future development are
set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” set out on page 3, pages 4 to 7 and pages 8 to 12 respectively of this annual report. Description
of the risks faced by the Group is set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

Environmental policy and performance

The Group is committed to making contributions to sustainable development in different aspects, including
environmental protection. To ensure compliance with applicable environmental laws, we have developed a
comprehensive environmental policy for our operations. During the reporting period, the Group had been in
compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations of Hong Kong, Mainland China and Indonesia.

Detailed information regarding the environmental, social and governance practices adopted by the Group will be
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company no later than three months after the publication of this
annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the year under review, so far as the Company is aware, the Group had complied with all relevant laws
and regulations material to the operations of the Group.

Relationships with employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers and other stakeholders

The ongoing success of the Group is dependent on its stakeholders, including its employees, customers,
shareholders and suppliers. The Group regards its employees as important stakeholders and provides them with
competitive remuneration packages and other labour benefits in line with industry practices, a workplace
conducive to occupational health and safety, as well as in-service training on a continued basis.

The Group is committed to forging closer ties with its customers. We also consistently uphold and strengthen
our cooperation with suppliers, while maintaining communications with shareholders through, among others, our
corporate website (www.eaglenice.com.hk).

The Company communicates with the Shareholders and other stakeholders mainly through: (i) the convening of
annual general meetings which provides an opportunity for direct communication between the Shareholders and
the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements, annual and interim reports and/or circulars in accordance with
the Listing Rules, as well as press releases providing the latest updates on the Group's development; and (iii)
the website of the Company which provides the latest information on the Group.

Event after the Reporting Period

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Group has agreed to purchase (i) 100% shareholding
interest of Year Fortune, which has a branch, namely, Year Fortune Group Limited Taiwan Branch; and (ii)
100% shareholding interest of Faith Year, which has two subsidiaries, namely, Pro Kingtex and Pro Kingtex
Vietnam Co., Ltd., for a consideration of US$31,617,998 (approximately HK$246.6 million). Completion of the
Sale and Purchase Agreement took place on 1 June 2018.

Details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder have been disclosed

in the announcements of the Company dated 29 March 2018, 3 April 2018, 27 April 2018, and 1 June 2018
respectively, and the circular of the Company dated 30 April 2018.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution of their reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chung Yuk Sing
Chairman

Hong Kong

21 June 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence. The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance
practices. The Company had, throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, complied with the code provisions of
the CG Code except for the deviations specified with considered reasons explained in this corporate
governance report.

1. DIRECTORS

a. Board’s Composition & Board Meetings
The composition of the Board and the individual attendance of each Director at board meetings and
the annual general meeting of the Company ("AGM") during the year are set out as follows:

Number of

board meetings
Name of Director attended/held 2017 AGM
Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 6/6 1Al
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying (Vice Chairman) 6/6 11
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina 6/6* 11
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan 6/6* 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho 5/6 11
Mr. Lu Chi Chant 6/6 1Al
Ms. Tham Kit Wan 5/6 11
* Out of the six meetings of the Board, two Board meetings were to consider the connected transaction with an

indirectly non-wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen. Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina and Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan,
despite their presence at such meetings, abstained from voting and were not counted in the quorum towards the
meetings due to their deemed interests in the transaction discussed at such meetings.

Biographical details of all Directors are disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior
Management’'s Biographies” in this annual report. To the best knowledge of the Company, there are
no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships amongst members of the
Board.

b. Independent Non-Executive Directors
At least one of the independent non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs") has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Group has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Group considered all of the INEDs
to be independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Each of the INEDs was appointed for a term of three years with a formal letter of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of his/her appointment.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1. DlRECTORS (continued)

C.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Chung Yuk Sing,
who has been the Chairman of the Board since 2002, was appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company with effect from 30 June 2013. Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, the Board
considers that the present structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Group as the Board assumes collective responsibility on the
decision-making process of the Company’s business strategies and operation. The principal divisions
of the Group's businesses are managed by different Directors.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management

The Board has the collective responsibility for leadership and control of, and for promoting the
success of, the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. The Board is responsible for
determining the overall strategy and corporate development and ensuring the business operations
are properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy matters of the Group and
material transactions.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and monitoring the operations of
the Group, in discharging its duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to:

i) the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Each committee’s constitution, powers and
duties are clearly defined by its terms of reference, and the committees are accountable to the
Board,

ii) the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-day management of the businesses
of the Group, is accountable to the Board; and

iii)  the senior management team of the Group, being delegated with the responsibilities to deal
with daily operational functions, is answerable to the Board.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of authority to ensure that such

delegation is appropriate in view of the Company’s prevailing circumstances and that appropriate
reporting systems are in place.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1.

DlRECTORS (continued)

e.

Appointment, re-election and removal

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and any Directors appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy)
or until the next following AGM (in the case of an addition to the existing Board) and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

The appointment of new Directors and nomination of Directors for re-election at AGM are first
considered by the Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will
then be put to the Board for decision. In considering the appointment of new Directors, the
Nomination Committee will assess the candidate according to the criteria set out in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. In the case of a candidate for an INED, he/she should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code
throughout the year.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against
its Directors and officers.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1. DlRECTORS (continued)

h.

Continuing professional development

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each newly appointed Director would
receive an induction package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company. The Group also provides briefings and other training to
develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group continuously updates Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
Circulars or guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior management to ensure awareness of
corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Directors participated in the following trainings:

Type of Trainings

Executive Directors

Mr. Chung Yuk Sing A.C
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying AC
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina A,B,C
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan A,C
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho AB,C
Mr. Lu Chi Chant A.C
Ms. Tham Kit Wan A.B,C

A:  having training provided by the Company

B:  attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums

C: reading newspapers/journals and updates relating to their profession and director’s
responsibilities

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Company’s affairs. During the year under review, the Company Secretary has duly complied with
the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy in December 2013. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees increasing
diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. A truly
diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be
considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be
balanced appropriately. All Board appointments are made on merit and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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1. DlRECTORS (continued)

J- Board Diversity Policy (continued)
The Nomination Committee will discuss annually for achieving diversity from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, skills, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and knowledge. The Nomination Committee will also conduct a review of the
policy periodically which will include an assessment of the effectiveness of the policy and
recommend any proposed changes to rectify identified deficiencies for the approval by the Board.

2. BOARD COMMITTEES

a. Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director, namely, Mr. Chung Yuk Sing and
two INEDs, namely, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho and Mr. Lu Chi Chant. Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the Board in establishing a formal
and transparent procedure for setting policy on Directors’ and senior management’'s remuneration
and to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management (i.e. the model described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code was adopted) as well as on the remuneration of INEDs by reference to the Company’s
operation results, individual performance and prevailing market rate.

The CG Code requires remuneration committee meets at least once a year. During the year under
review, two committee meetings were held. The attendance of the individual member of the
Remuneration Committee at the meetings is set out below:

Number of

meetings

Committee Members attended/held
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing 2/2
Mr. Lu Chi Chant 2/2

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year:

(i) review of the salary increment for the Directors and staff in Hong Kong, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval; and

(i) recommendation to the Board on the payment of discretionary bonuses to the Executive Directors

and the senior management of the Group in respect of the interim results of the Company for
the six months ended 30 September 2017.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

2. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual remuneration of the
members of the senior management of the Group (excluding Directors) by band for the year ended
31 March 2018 is as follows:

Number of

Emolument band employees
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 0
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1
5

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note
8 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all three INEDs. The Board considers that each member of the
Audit Committee has broad commercial experience and together form a suitable mix of expertise in
the legal and accounting fields and that the composition and members of the Audit Committee
comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in its terms of reference. To
maintain its independence, the Audit Committee is required to have at least one meeting with the
external auditor without the presence of Executive Directors within a financial year. The function of
the committee is to provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities to the
Shareholders, potential shareholders, the investment community and other stakeholders relating to:
(i) the integrity of accounts and financial reporting process of the Company;

(i) the assessment of the external auditor’s qualifications and independence;

(i) the performance of the Company's internal audit function and the external auditor; and

(iv)  the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

2. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

b.

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings including two meetings with the external
auditor without the presence of the Executive Directors and the management. The attendance of the
individual member of the Audit Committee at the meetings is set out below:

Number of

meetings

Committee Members attended/held
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Lu Chi Chant 4/4
Ms. Tham Kit Wan 4/4

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the year:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

review of the annual report and results announcement of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2017, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

review of the external auditor's independence and their report, with a recommendation to the
Board for the re-appointment of the external auditor by the Shareholders at its 2017 AGM,;

review of the interim report and results announcement of the Company for the six months ended
30 September 2017, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

consideration of audit and non-audit services provided by the external auditor;

review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
through an external independent internal audit service provider (the “Independent Professional
Firm”) who was engaged to perform the aforesaid work on a half-yearly basis and no material
findings had been identified;

review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and

budget; and

review of the audit fees payable to the external auditor for the year ended 31 March 2018, with
a recommendation to the Board for approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

2. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

b.

Audit Committee (continued)
Regarding the Group’s corporate governance, the Board has delegated the responsibilities to the
Audit Committee to perform the following corporate governance duties including:

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(i) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate governance;

(iii)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
management;

(iv) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance report; and

(v)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to employees and Directors.

During the year, for the corporate governance functions, the Independent Professional Firm with
professional staff in possession of relevant expertise was engaged to perform the aforesaid work
and no material findings had been identified.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, namely, Mr. Chung Yuk Sing and two
INEDs, namely, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho and Mr. Lu Chi Chant. Mr. Chung Yuk Sing is the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become the Directors, and to
assess the independence of the INEDs. After considering the independence and qualifications of
nominees, the Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board so as to ensure that all
nominations are fair and transparent. The Nomination Committee is also making recommendations
on the appointment or reappointment of the Directors and succession planning of the Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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2. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

C.

Nomination Committee (continued)

The CG Code requires nomination committee meets at least once every year and additional
meetings may be convened by the chairman of the committee as and when necessary. During the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee met once to review the existing structure,
size, diversity and composition of the Board, and to assess the independence of the INEDs. The
attendance of individual member of the Nomination Committee at the meeting is set out below:

Number of

meeting

Committee Members attended/held
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing (Chairman) Al
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho 11
Mr. Lu Chi Chant I7Al

3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

a.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board was not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, so that the Board has prepared the accounts on a going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, are set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 38 to 41 of the annual report.

Corporate Governance, Internal Control and Risk Management of the Group

The Board has the overall responsibilities for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the
risks (including environmental, social and governance-related risks (“ESG-Related Risks")). It is willing
to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems (including those for ESG-Related Risks) and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees management in performing its duties. The
risk management and internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable, though not
absolute, assurance against material misstatements or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

b.

Corporate Governance, Internal Control and Risk Management of the Group (continued)
The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk associated with its
businesses and operations. The system comprises the following phases:

(i) Identification: identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives

(i) Evaluation: analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly

(i)  Management: consider the risk responses, ensure effective communication to the Board and
monitor the residual risks on ongoing basis

Disclosure of inside information policy is in place to ensure potential inside information being
captured and confidentiality of such information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosures are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the handling and
dissemination of inside information. It includes:

(i) designated reporting channels from different departments/operation units to inform any potential
inside information to the Company Secretary;

(i) access of information restricted to a limited number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

(il)  confidentiality agreements in place when the Group enters into significant negotiations;

(iv) senior management to evaluate the potential inside information and to determine further
escalation, and the executive Directors to determine disclosure as required; and

(v)  Investor Relations Director being the designated person who speaks on behalf of the Company
when communicating with external parties, such as media, analysts or investors.

During the year, the Company engaged the Independent Professional Firm to perform internal audit
function for the year, which comprised, inter alia, enterprise risk assessment and reviews on the
internal control system of the Group, including financial, operational and compliance controls. The
review plan was approved by the Audit Committee and the Board. Based on the risk assessments
and the reviews of the internal control systems of the Group conducted by the Independent
Professional Firm for the year, no significant risk and control deficiency was identified. The relevant
assessment and review reports have been considered by the Audit Committee and the Board for
assessing the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
performed by the Independent Professional Firm. The Board, through the reviews made by the
Independent Professional Firm and the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate for the Group as a whole.
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3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

C.

Auditor’'s Remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the fee payable to the Group’s auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out
as follows:

Amount of

Services rendered fee payable
HK$'000

Audit services 2,767
Non-audit services 63
2,830

4. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM")
The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company can make
a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to convene an EGM pursuant to article
58 of the Company’s articles of association. The written requisition must state the objects of the
meeting, and must be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing the Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

The Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Investor Relations Director and deposit at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong
or by e-mail to ir@eaglenice.com.hk.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting

There are no provisions under the Company's articles of association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands regarding procedures for the Shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings other than a proposal of a person for election as Director. The Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene an EGM for any business specified in such written
requisition or the procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director
which is available on the website of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

5. COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy since March 2012. The primary
communication channel between the Company and the Shareholders is through the publication of
announcements, circulars and interim and annual reports which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company’'s AGM acts as a useful platform for direct communication between the Shareholders and
the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general

meetings.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules and the memorandum and articles
of association in respect of voting by poll and other related matters.

On behalf of the Board

Chung Yuk Sing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 June 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

EY::

To the shareholders of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 168, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill was HK$26,112,000 as at Our audit procedures included, among others, involving
31 March 2018. The Group performs an impairment test our valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
for goodwill on an annual basis. The impairment test is assumptions and methodologies used by the Group, in
based on the recoverable amount of the cash-generating particular, the discount rate and terminal growth rate.
unit to which the goodwill is associated. Management's We compared the forecasts prepared by management
assessment process involves significant judgements and with the historic performance of the cash-generating unit
assumptions, including those related to the expected and the business development plan. We also focused on
future cash flow forecasts, associated growth rates and the Group's disclosures of goodwill in the consolidated
the discount rate applied, which are sensitive to expected financial statements.

future market conditions and the cash-generating unit's

actual performance.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures of goodwill are included in notes 3 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Kwong Ka Yan.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

21 June 2018
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Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_FT—/)\FE=ZF=+—HIFE
2018 2017
—E-)\£F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Fft 5 FET TFET
REVENUE BRI 5 2,109,422 1,757,316
Cost of sales iH & A (1,703,605) (1,436,456)
Gross profit EF 405,817 320,860
Other income and gains B I B I 7 5 12,828 17,636
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHBAX (33,528) (22,518)
Administrative expenses THRAX (154,733) (127,947)
Gain on deregistration of HiEH—ERBAR
a subsidiary Z Wz 28 47,099 —
Finance costs & B A 6 (3,817) (2,876)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B 78 B A 7 273,666 185,155
Income tax expense Fisfi = 10 (43,654) (30,036)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AATHEE AL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS FERM
OF THE COMPANY 230,012 188,119
EARNINGS PER SHARE AERREE AEW HK cents HK cents
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS FRAEF A1 AL
OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic RN 46.0 31.0
Diluted e 46.0 31.0
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SetHEHKABR

Year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZF=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—B—)\F “E—tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&T TFET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEH 230,012 155,119
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hit @i ()
(EXPENSE)
Other comprehensive expense not to be REZHPBEATENSLE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent FEETNHEMEEmZH
periods:
Actuarial loss on a defined benefit plan EREEMNEZEEEIR (4) (765)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) AHZHABTERTEE
may be reclassified to profit or loss in BRENEMEEKE
subsequent periods: (ZH) :
Exchange differences on translation MEBIEBZERER
of foreign operations 83,001 (43,419)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation 5T 8 — [E B 2 B R BE =R
reserve upon deregistration REREZ L
of a subsidiary (32,128) —
50,873 (43,419)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FEHMEEmKE ()
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR, (EMRHRE)
NET OF TAX 50,869 (44,184)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AREEEABLEESEK
FOR THE YEAR AND ATTRIBUTABLE g ]
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 280,881 110,935
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—Eg—-/NEFE=ZHF=+—H
2018 2017
—E—)\&§F —F—tHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET TFET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 13 768,759 648,645
Prepaid land lease payments A TmEERIE 14 60,877 57,579
Goodwill Bk 16 26,112 26,112
Deposits ZE 15 13,937 22,112
Deferred tax asset EERIBEEE 25 1,695 9,096
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 871,380 763,544
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories 7E 17 381,985 296,652
Accounts and bills receivables EIER R R E B 18 234,072 125,451
Prepayments, deposits and FEARE - ReER
other receivables H th FE IR 15 56,100 49,929
Tax recoverable ] I [B] #62 =R 1,777 2,204
Restricted bank balance TR AR 1T AR 19 2,639 —
Cash and bank balances W& RIBTHER 19 222,870 290,934
Total current assets MEEERE 899,443 765,170
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBERE
Accounts payable Jf& 1 BR 3K 20 145,767 135,284
Accrued liabilities and other BstaBdxk
payables Bt FE 1 5RIE 22 110,268 84,840
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIBITER 23 196,800 143,050
Tax payable EfiR1E 17,414 32,173
Total current liabilities MENABEEE 470,249 395,347
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 429,194 369,823
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & EMEINMRKE & &
LIABILITIES 1,300,574 1,133,367
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
BEMBRAR(E)

31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

2018 2017
—EF-)\£F —E—tHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
fft 5F FET TFET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Pension scheme obligation RINE 5T EIAE 24 13,951 10,033
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 25 15,316 12,985
Total non-current liabilities ERBEGHEE 29,267 23,018
Net assets BEFE 1,271,307 1,110,349
EQUITY =3
Equity attributable to owners ERREE AEBGEER
of the Company
Issued capital BERTERA 26 4,997 4,997
Reserves HE 27 1,266,310 1,105,352
Total equity BGAR4EE 1,271,307 1,110,349

CHUNG YUK SING

CHEN HSIAO YING

HEA BRI/
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GOEmZBR

&

Year ended 31 March 2018

BE_F-/NFZA=Z1+—HLEFE

Issued
capital
B&fT
k%
HK$'000

Share
premium
account
iz
BER
HK$'000
TR

Attributable to owners of the Company
EUNCIE 2N

Exchange

Statutory

Capital surplus fluctuation

reserve
&%

i
HK$'000
TET
(Note 27)
(MaEar)

reserve
BT
RifE
HK$'000
TET
(Note 27)
(MaEar)

reserve
KEN G
HK$'000

TER

Retained
profits

BEE
HK$'000
TET

Total

it
HK$'000
TER

At 1 April 2016 RZF-"ENE—-H 4,997 472,586 (229) 58,648 90,550 472,798 1,099,350
Profit for the year FEHA = = = = — 155119 155,119
Other comprehensive expense FEAMLERL
for the year:
Actuarial loss on a defined benefit plan EERHFABEEE = — = = = (765) (765)
Exchange differences on translation TEBNEBZERER
of foreign operations = = = = (43,419) = (43,419)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FELENE/ (X))
for the year ag — = = —  (43419) 154354 110,935
Transfer to reserve BEZHE = = = 3,463 = (3,463) —
Final 2016 dividend “E-NERERR 11 = = = = — (24984  (24984)
Interim 2017 dividend “B-tENHARE 11 = = = = — (14952 (74952
At 31 March 2017 RZF-t£=A=+-H 4997 472,586* (229%  62111*  47,131*  523,753* 1,110,349
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tENE-H 4,997 472,586 (229) 62,111 47,131 523,753 1,110,349
Profit for the year FERT - - - - - 230012 230,012
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FEEMLEAR/ () :
for the year:
Actuarial loss on a defined benefit plan EEENHEARERR - - - - - (4) (4)
Exchange differences on translation FESMEBZER
of foreign operations 8 - - - - 83,001 - 83,001
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve 5t 85— i B /2 A R EE R
upon deregistration of a subsidiary KEFEEZRR - - - - (32,128) - (32,128)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EELHEKEEE - - - - 50,873 230,008 280,881
Transfer to reserve BREHRE - - - 2,19 - (2,194) -
Transfer of reserve upon deregistration HH-AREARAREREZ
of a subsidiary iE - - - (7,758) - 7,758 -
Final 2017 dividend “B-tERERE 11 - - - - - (29981)  (29,981)
Interim 2018 dividend “B-)\EHHRE 11 - - - - - (89942)  (89,942)
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-\£=A=+-H 4997  472586* (229)*  56547*  98,004*  639,402¢ 1,271,307

*

HK$1,266,310,000 (31

consolidated statement of financial position.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
March 2017: HK$1,105,352,000) in the

88

*

ZERBERECEINGEVTERRRNGEERH
##51,266,310,0008 T (—_FB—tE=BA=+—H:

1,105,352,0003 7T) °



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED &35 (B BR) =R B IR A Al

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

ZE-N\FER

J

Consolidated Stalemem of Cash Flows

GEHERER

Year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZF=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—B—)\F “E—tHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% T#&T TFET
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBREEZHEERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R B 35 7l 273,666 185,155
Adjustments for: BYUTIEBRE
Finance costs & B A 6 3,817 2,876
Bank interest income RITH B WA 5 (1,789) (2,123)
Depreciation e 53,986 46,225
Amortisation of prepaid FEfT L & FRIE
land lease payments 7 2,037 2,072
Gain on disposal of items of HEYE BEXK
property, plant and equipment R 1E E K= 5 (719) (2,815)
Gain on disposal of prepaid land HEBREM T HBAERE KRS
lease payments 5 (1,645) (3,115)
Gain on deregistration of i — B AW
a subsidiary 7 (47,099) =
282,254 228,275
Decrease/(increase) in inventories D (3En) (85,333) 63,300
Increase in accounts and EEH&UEEM&%?)%EWD
bills receivables (108,621) (13,928)
Decrease/(increase) in FEMNRE REk
prepayments, deposits and Hi e R > (3 hn)
other receivables (6,010) 2,777
Increase in accounts payable JFE 1 BR SR G A0 12,220 1,861
Increase in accrued liabilities and ~ FE&t & & & H fib FE {+
other payables RIEE h0 33,896 536
Increase in pension scheme BRAREsrEI&EEM
liabilities 4,279 3,129
Settlement of pension scheme EERASFEIEE
liabilities (53) (72)
Increase in restricted bank balance 3% BR il 88 17 4% 8R 12 h0 (2,639) —
Cash generated from operations EEELEZRS 129,993 285,878
Interest paid ENMFE (3,817) (2,876)
Dividends paid EMfEE (119,923) (99,936)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBANER (26,507) (10,757)
Overseas tax paid EfiEIRIE (17,421) (22,364)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KRB/ (AR REEB
operating activities HE&EREFE (37,675) 149,945
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
BEHERER(E)
Year ended 31 March 2018
BE_F—/\F=ZF=+—HIFFE
2018 2017
—B—)\F “EF—tHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5% T#&T FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREFZHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal HEME  BE KK
of items of property, plant and 18 B 8 IE A
equipment, net 993 5,185
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid HEEM L#HESKIE
land lease payments, net 8 REZE 2,463 5,333
Purchases of items of property, BEYE BENAXEEE
plant and equipment (116,957) (64,944)
Interest received ERFE 1,789 2,123
Decrease in non-current ERBEIEH IZRER D
portion of deposits 8,175 1,255
Net cash flows used in investing BARiREEE 2
activities HEREFE (103,537) (51,048)
CASH FLOWS FROM A REAMEEHZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITY
New/(repayment of) bank loans, net #i%  ({&3&)RITEXR
and net cash flows from/(used in) REEKE (AR @ME
a financing activity FEHMZEEREFE 53,200 (54,850)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) RErREFERBEM
IN CASH AND CASH GR) EE
EQUIVALENTS (88,012) 44,047
Cash and cash equivalents FENzRErES%EEER
at beginning of year 290,934 255,413
Effect of foreign exchange [EREE) 2 5 8% E
rate changes, net 19,948 (8,526)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS F&ZHEXR
AT END OF YEAR R&EEEER 222,870 290,934
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES REeEkFEEEFEHER
OF CASH AND CASH ZEERRS IR
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances HERIBTHER 19 225,509 290,934
Less: Restricted bank balance B ZIRHIRITEER 19 (2,639) o
222,870 290,934
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CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905—-0906, 9/F., Tower
B, Regent Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Group’s principal activities are the manufacture and
trading of sportswear and garments.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

Place of
incorporation/

registration Issued share/paid-up

Notes to Financial Statements
R Y

31 March 2018
—F-/NF=ZF=+—H

~EIREEEH

AR ARRAEHEFEMEBIZ
ERAB - ARNBEMPEEUR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands * A AR Z EELEMIMURE
B RERITEITHIOEER T OBEN
1£0902-0903 % % 0905-0906 = °

FEEZIEEBREEREEEHR
R AR

MEBABZER
AADEEWBEADHBEMT -

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company

and business registered capital FARMIGREST D
Name R AL ERTRE 2018 2017  Principal activities
NSE BREREEME YREMEX =L PN — -t F EEEYR
Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; Non-voting 100 100 Investment holding
M= (WEEE)BRAA BB deferred HK$10,000 (Note (a)) BEER
(2017: Ordinary HK$2;
Non-voting deferred
HK$10,000)
LER2E T BRERETR
10,0007 T (Ff 5 (a) )
(ZB—t & BTBR2ETT
4% ZE AR T A%10,000% 7T)
#MECLUE) WXERAE The People’s Republic US$23,500,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
("YM (Shantou)”) (Notes (b) and (c)) of China (“PRC")/ (2017: US$23,500,000) sportswear and garments
(T#83= Cliga) 1) (M &E (o) & (c)) Mainland China 23,500,000 7T SEREEEHRR MK
REARLME (Z%/—+ 4 : 23,500,000% 7T)
([HRER]),/ K R
HECLE) WXERAE PRC/Mainland China ~ HK$15,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and trading of
("YY (Shantou)”) (Notes (c) and (d)) FERE KR (2017: HK$15,000,000) sportswear and garments
([#8 Clizg) ) (B &% (c) R (d)) 15,000,000 7T SERBEREHR KRR
(ZZ—+ 4 : 15,000,000 7T)
Eagle Nice Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 (2017: HKS$1) 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
EEXEZRBRAA BE 1BT(ZF—tF 18T sportswear and garments
HEEXRBEFEESR R AKX
Maitex (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
R (EXEE) BRAE B5E (2017: HK$1,000) sportswear and garments
1,000 7T SEREEEHRRMAK

(ZF—+%F :1,00087T)

91



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED [ 35 (BIBR) =B IRA A ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —F—/N\F&F#H

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEBERExME(E)
31 March 2018
—Eg—/\FE=ZF=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

rEIREEER @

MEBARZER @

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

FADTEMBADHBENT ()

Percentage of equity

Place of
incorporation/ attributable to
registration Issued share/paid-up /\t_he Company
and business registered capital A2 7 B A 4 5 3 b
Name B30 BRTRR 2018 2017  Principal activities
ACEET BRREEME HREME X =PI -t F EEER
ERBRHHUNXEGRAE PRC/ Mainland China  HK$40,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
(“Maitex PRC") (Notes (b) and (c)) HElHEIX R (2017: HK$40,000,000) sportswear and garments
(MEE R ) (M3 (b) K (c) ) 40,000,000 7T SERERESHRKIAK
(ZZ—+t 4 : 40,000,000% 7T)
King Eagle (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 (2017: HK$1) 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
2B (EEXELE@MBRAE 5B 1B (2 —tF: 187T) sportswear and garments
EEREEESHRXIAK
ERBLEEBUREGRAE PRC/Mainland China  US$4,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
(“Hung Eagle Garment") e, R K B (2017: US$4,000,000) sportswear and garments
(Notes (b) and (c)) 4,000,0003 7T EEXREEEHRZMX
(TEREED (b Klc)) (ZZ—+t 4 : 4,000,000 7T)
Eagle Nice (Indonesia) Hong Kong HK$1 (2017: HK$1) 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited 5E 1B (ZR—tF: 18T RERK
= (ENR) ERBRAA
P.T. Eagle Nice Indonesia Indonesia US$32,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
("EN Indonesia”) 2103 (2017: US$32,000,000) sportswear and garments
([E=ENE)) 32,000,000 7© SERERESHRKIAK
(ZZ—+t 4 : 32,000,000 7T)
Eagle Nice (Jiangxi) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
Garment Limited & (2017: HK$10,000) BRERR
BxCIAE) HRBRAR 10,0007 7T
(ZZ—+t 4% : 10,0008 7T)
EX(E2)HXFRAE PRC/Mainland China  US$25,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
(“EN (Yifeng)") HE K (2017: US$25,000,000) sportswear and garments

(Notes (b) and (c))
(T (EE) ) (Kb Klc))

Notes:

25,000,000 7©
(Z=F—+ 4% : 25,000,000% 7T)

(a) The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends,
no rights to attend or vote at general meetings and no rights
to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital in a

EEREHEERRKRBR

Bt & -

(a) EREEECZRLEEMNERKS HE
BREREHESTLRE  TEETERR
BEARESEMMNGEECERRER

= 1 Bk 48 £2100,000,000,000,0007 7T 7 ik
FAAZBERFBEAR BRERNDZHE
A RRIIERUE EEFRSN)

winding-up (other than the nominal amount paid up or
credited as paid-up on such shares, after the sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company in such winding-up).
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b) YM (Shantou), Maitex PRC, Hung Eagle Garment and EN
(Yifeng) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law.

(c) The statutory financial statements of these entities are not
audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

(d) Pursuant to an approval of deregistration issued by the local
authority, YY (Shantou) was deregistered during the year.
Details of the deregistration was set out in note 28.

All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2018
—EF-/NF=ZF=+—H
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRME(E)
31 March 2018
—F—/NFE=ZF=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 21 HNEE e

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2018. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuea)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary; (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest; and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received; (i) the fair value of any investment retained;
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the income
statement. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive
reclassified to the income statement or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

income is

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities:
Clarification of the
Scope of HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2018
—EF-/NF=ZF=+—H
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRME(E)
31 March 2018
—F—/NFE=ZF=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

As explained below, the adoption of the above revised
standards has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Disclosure of the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities is provided in note 28 to the
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity,
when assessing whether taxable profits will be
available against which it can utilise a deductible
temporary difference, needs to consider whether
tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the
reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on
how an entity should determine future taxable
profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some
assets for more than their carrying amount. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group
has no deductible temporary differences or assets
that are in the scope of the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12, other than
those disclosure requirements in paragraphs B10 to
B16 of HKFRS 12, apply to an entity's interest in a
subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate, or a
portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group classified as held for
sale. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group's financial statements as the Group has no
subsidiary being classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group classified as held for
sale as at 31 March 2018 and so no additional
information is required to be disclosed.

96

22 SRR RIEEEE »

AN T PTERE - R BRI RT R
MBRRTNBEERMBEE -

EBGHENETREITERERE
HiRE  UEMBRREREFME
METBRMEEANGEEE  €F
RERERFRERNELDELEN
e METHMELENEEEH
R B HwRMFE28

ERAGHENE12REBIIERTEER
KP4 2B BRN M 7 F
HAMRERERR FEZER
BEOIZREHRAINRERERE
(5] s AT R 1R 8H 2 B aR M a1 2 3R
RBFTRE - b5 ZFEITME
BE & 40 7 728 7E R 2R B SR A i ) R it
5l MR EERREN T 2EK
OBEEREEZMIEEZER -
R A& E 3 A P HURE R =
BAZEBIBENZEE  WE
RZEFEITHAEEZ MBI N
RRWBEAZE -

ERMBHRELRBI2REITES
ERMBRELENFI2ZRZEER
E(BEBUBHREEMNE12385EB10
EBIBRZKEBRERIN BARE
ERNEAS GELEEIBMER
ANERD AERDPERFFELHE
FIRDEAFELEN L E A5
MEERARBE QBN E
moHRAEER=F—/\F=R
=+ —HEESERRFFHEH
BArE TERBAGDEEEDSE
RBEHENHEMAR  WEFRK
BEZER 2FEIHAEED
BHEBRRELLELZE -



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED &35 (B BR) =R B IR A Al

ANNUALREPORT 2018 =F—/N\F&FH

J

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture*

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Transfers of Investment
Property’

Foreign Currency
Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments?
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 1
and HKAS 28!

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
and HKAS 232

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt
HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group will not restate
comparative information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1
April 2018. During the year, the Group has performed an
assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9.
The expected impacts relate to the classification and
measurement and the impairment requirements and are
summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement
The Group does not expect that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments recorded at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income, lease
receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at
fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to
be recorded based on an expected credit loss
model either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime
basis.

The Group will apply the simplified approach and
record lifetime expected losses that are estimated
based on the present values of all cash shortfalls
over the remaining life of all of its accounts and
bills receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply
the general approach and record twelve-month
expected credit losses that are estimated based on
the possible default events on its other receivables
within the next twelve months.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9

will

have no significant impact on the financial

performance and the financial position of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is
required on the initial application of the standard. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of
applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 April
2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements only to contracts that are not completed
before 1 April 2018. The Group has assessed the impact
of the adoption of HKFRS 15 and expects that the
standard will not have significant impact, when applied,
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

100

2.3

EEMGEEREMNE BN
BHREEN

\L

REZZB-—NFELRBRBNEBMBRS
HAFIGRBL—EHRNASEN - %
FERZBHENER - RIEBFBUBREE
AISE165% - NmiRE R IRE R THHA R X
MEFEREVARBMEEESHN
BETBERD BEBMBREERE165RN
RABFERER B mEHEMEREL
M775 - ZERTSIANBRNEEREE
RERE BEIFRDEE BRET
BE TEBEZENEEREERES
BRAVE B DU E EH BT R AT ER - %
HAGRAREEEVMBRESEA TR
B EHNEEHRE - EEBZENS -
A = H K8 W B RS2 T BB
B - RZZB—NENR BBEEAL
CHEMEEBMB RS ELFE16RERT -
BERMNZENZZABREE  S8EH
BIEKMEE  HESZ ARNEABRAHE
ERFAUEHZERIES - URRMNZE
Al Z@EH - ZFEITRHERER
RIRNE B MRS % A 55155 B 62

M—Bt R B RER R EEERERH
R Z AR - AEEGFEIRNE
7B B4 %5 3R o ZE Bl 551658 B8 T2 M R STIY
ERAT RNV RFATE  FRHRZE
—/\FHAE—HZREBEF KL EER
REE - REEFEEHR-F
—/\FHB—HZAHRERNEGHE
FRHRE - AEEEFRRNETBUBER
SEABGROTE  FHRAZEAR
EHAKEROVBEREREATE -



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED &35 (B BR) =R B IR A Al

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —=%F—

NEFR

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17
Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of
certain events, such as change in the lease term and
change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make
more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April
2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 wupon adoption and expects that certain
portion of the Group’'s future minimum lease
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases will
be required to be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBERHBE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in the income statement as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the
asset’'s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to

write off the cost of each item of property, plant and

equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Leasehold land under Over the lease terms
finance leases

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Over the lease terms
Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures, equipment 20%
and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are

initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs for
loans.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
income statement in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
income statement as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability in
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to the income
statement over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payable,

financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the income statement. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the income statement
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside the income
statement is recognised outside the income statement,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEETHBREHME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the
expenditure incurred in the construction cost of an
infrastructure project, are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the income
statement by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(i) from the sale of goods and samples, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold; and

(i) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEETHBREHME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

In addition, the Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”)
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
Retirement Scheme. Contributions to the Retirement
Scheme are charged to the income statement as
incurred. The Retirement Scheme operates in a similar
way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
leaves the Retirement Scheme before his/her interest in
the Group’s employer contributions vests fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group are reduced
by the relevant amount of the forfeited employer
contributions.

The employees of the Group’'s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme for their employees who are
registered as permanent residents in Mainland China.
The contributions are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from a defined benefit pension
plan, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return
on plan assets (excluding net interest), are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial
position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to the income statement in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in the income
statement at the earlier of:

° the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

° the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the income statement by
function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and

non-routine settlements; and

° net interest expense or income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEETHBREHME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The
gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or the income statement is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or the
income statement, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, their
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2018 was
HK$26,112,000 (2017: HK$26,112,000). Further details are
given in note 16.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes an impairment allowance for doubtful
debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of
accounts and bills receivables. Allowances are applied to
accounts and bills receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgements and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact on
the carrying value of the receivables and impairment/
write-back of impairment in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. The carrying amount of
accounts and bills receivables at 31 March 2018 was
HK$234,072,000 (2017: HK$125,451,000). Further details
are given in note 18.

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group determines that
there are five reportable operating segments, based on
the location of customers (the destination of sales),
including the United States of America (the “USA"),
Mainland China, Europe, Japan and others. These
segments are managed separately as each segment is
subject to risks and returns that are different from one
another.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax
is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that interest income and other unallocated
income and gains, gain on deregistration of a subsidiary
and unallocated expenses are excluded from such
measurement.
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31 March 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2018
—EF-/NEZF=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BEHFEM @
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)
Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these ﬁ%ﬁ%éxg}%iﬁ@ﬁﬁ& - RERZE
assets are managed on a group basis. EEREREER-
Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these ﬁ%%%m%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ%fﬁ RERZE
liabilities are managed on a group basis. AEEEEEE-
2018 —F-)\E
Mainland
China USA Europe NETED Others  Consolidated
R K R x£E BR M BX HftitE ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TERT TER TER
Segment revenue: DEEERA
Sales to external HEFHNARR
customers 753,101 636,840 311,858 67,848 339,775 2,109,422
Segment results DEEE 125,291 109,997 51,000 11,379 54,516 352,183
Interest income and FIEW AR H A
other unallocated KRB K
income and gains Wz 12,828
Gain on deregistration FH-—RKNBREZ
of a subsidiary Wz 47,099
Unallocated expenses KR X H (138,444)
Profit before tax B 753 81 i A 273,666
Income tax expense FielREx (43,654)
Profit for the year AREEEA
attributable to owners B EERT
of the Company 230,012
Segment assets NEEE 504,506 399,641 243,274 81,321 239,671 1,468,413
Unallocated assets KL EE 302,410
1,770,823
Segment liabilities NEEE 106,298 93,715 44,194 9,352 49,157 302,716
Unallocated liabilities KGEaE 196,800
499,516
Other segment information: Ef1 2 SEE #
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation 12,053 14,226 6,277 1,564 7,251 41,371
Unallocated amounts REESE 14,652
56,023
Capital expenditure* EXMZ* 35,726 32,180 15,822 4,234 17,170 105,132
Unallocated amounts RGEEE 11,825
116,957
3 Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and i BEARAXRRYE BERZBEHNRE -
equipment.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRNE(H)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NF=ZF=+—H

REQFEER @

2017 —F—tHF
Mainland
China USA Europe Japan Others  Consolidated
HE KB ESE] BN X EHft#thg "
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FTET FET FTET FTET
Segment revenue: DEERBN
Sales to external HETFIHNEARR
customers 506,047 688,450 251,454 54,814 256,551 1,767, 31@
Segment results DEEE 77,295 104,943 39,527 8,159 37,446 267,370
Interest income and FIERARE MR 4R
other unallocated Fo e A\ K I &
income and gains 17,636
Unallocated expenses Ripfe X (99,851)
Profit before tax B 15 5 4 Al 185,155
Income tax expense FEREX (30,036)
Profit for the year PNNEIEZ 2= DN g
attributable to owners  EEi&Fl
of the Company 155,119
Segment assets NEEE 335,071 465,880 169,327 33,535 160,245 1,164,058
Unallocated assets KR EE 364,656
1,528,714
Segment liabilities NEEE 76,048 105,412 38,032 8,035 39,494 267,021
Unallocated liabilities AmELaE 151,344
418,365
Other segment HthDEER
information:
Depreciation and E R
amortisation 8,090 15,807 4,749 1,103 5,267 35,016
Unallocated amounts K& HE 13,281
48,297
Capital expenditure* BEARRX* 6,327 35,655 8,129 1,403 10,634 62,048
Unallocated amounts Rl o8 2,896
64,944
& Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and & ERABATZRRYE BEAXREHNRE -

equipment.

131



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED [ 35 (BIBR) =B IRA A

ANNUALREPORT 2018 =F—/\F&F&K

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRME(H)
31 March 2018
—F—/NFE=ZF=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information — non-current assets

WEER — FRBEE

2018 2017

—E—)\&§F —F—tHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong 5E 19,955 15,902
Mainland China AR [E K B 644,565 534,979
Indonesia Elfe 179,053 177,455
843,573 728,336

The non-current assets information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes goodwill and
deferred tax asset.

Information about major customers

Revenue of HK$1,407,865,000 (2017: HK$987,896,000)
and HK$529,600,000 (2017: HK$677,716,000) was derived
from sales to the largest customer and the second
largest customer of the Group, respectively. The above
amounts include sales to groups of entities which are
known to be under common control with these
customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

5. (R;EVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5. ZXIIRARHEMI A RIKiE
AINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods EERANDENRBREREZITNEE
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts. BEEERZBEERE-
An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as EEIAREMBARKE 22T
follows:
2018 2017
—B-)\F “E—tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue =1 PN
Sale of goods EmiHE 2,109,422 1,757,316
Other income and gains H g A\ & Ui i
Bank interest income RITF B WA 1,789 2,123
Income derived from available-for-sale At H & R BRI A
investments 633 646
Government grants* B AT /6 Bh <& 3,872 8,312
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE BEEXEBEBZ
plant and equipment g 719 2,815
Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease HEMEAM LA EHRIEZ KE
payments 1,645 3,115
Foreign exchange differences, net BE R ERETE 3,437 —
Others EHih 733 625
12,828 17,636
& There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to g %5 1/ B I £ 18 ROE R R F SR RA S AR
these grants. £IE o
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RIEMAE
2018 2017
—=E—)\&§F —F—tHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans RITERAE 3,817 2,876
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MBERRME(R)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEZF=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

B 5% B iz FU
AEEBRIR ARSI GIA) FAl&

(crediting): HEBRF/E -
2018 2017
B )\F —E—t&
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Cost of inventories sold EEEFEERA 1,703,605 1,436,456
Auditor's remuneration Tz B AT <& 2,767 2,640
Depreciation (note 13)* TE (KFEE13) * 53,986 46,225
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FEfT LT ERIE
payments (note 14)* (Kg5E14) * 2,037 2,072
Employee benefit expenses BEERIXE (FEHEEEK
(excluding directors’ and TBHESME — Ms) :
chief executive's remuneration
— note 8):
Wages and salaries TERFHE 458,287 376,598
Pension contributions, including a BARESHZE 8FER
pension cost for a defined EREBAFEINRAKE
benefit plan of HK$4,279,000 B 454,279,00058 7T
(2017: HK$3,129,000) (note 24) (ZE—+ £ 3,129,000
BIT) (M aE24) 71,955 59,889
Less: Forfeited contributions o BRI (12) =
Net pension contributions BRAESHRFE 71,943 59,889
Total employee benefit expenses*  #{EEEH X H* 530,230 436,487
Foreign exchange differences, net bE 2 EREIREE (3,437) 1,143
Gain on disposal of items of HEYME BEK
property, plant and equipment R EIE B s (719) (2,815)
Gain on disposal of prepaid land HEBEMLIHES
lease payments B W 3 (1,645) (3,115)
Income derived from available-for-sale 7]t {5 &£ & & B U A
investments (633) (646)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary &t #H — & i B A 5 I & (47,099) —

disclosed above:

Included in the respective balances are the following amounts
which are also included in the cost of inventories sold

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments

Employee benefit expenses

&

AN LA E RIA

BERAXH

FEABRTEEUTHALXAKREEES

FERAZEE:

2018
—EB—)\&§F

HK$'000
TERT

39,678

1,693
452,916

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
TR

33,336

1,679
380,320
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

ESRTHASME

FEREEERTREZMERETER
BRGAERABESF LHRA FERQ
BRI 5E383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ () R(FEKRAF
(WEESFTER) ROIF2ELENT :

2018 2017

—E—)\F —F—tHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Fees vtk 438 378

Other emoluments: Hii<e -

Salaries, allowances and e ZMERBEYEAN

benefits in kind 9,620 9,115

Discretionary bonuses 18 16 4L 4,500 4,500

Pension scheme contributions BAREEHEIHTR 1,234 1,166

15,354 14,781

15,792 15,159

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to

independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

(a) BIEHTES
FNNFRILFRTEETZHEN
B

2018 2017
B )\F§F —E—t&F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho PRERELE 146 126
Mr. Lu Chi Chant B E %L 146 126
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony EREs B ST
(resigned on 1 September (RZB—RE
2016) LB —H&HE) - 50
Ms. Tham Kit Wan ERERTL
(appointed on 1 September (RZEB—REF
2016) NWBE—BEZEE) 146 76
438 378

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2017: Nil).
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MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEZF=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EFRITHREEM=E o
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
(continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) BMITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e BER BIRE
g ENET migEa HEIHR R AR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET THERT TET THERT TET
2018 —B-\F
Executive directors: HOESE:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BB L
(“Mr. Chung")* (TEEHEED* - 3,568 2,500 495 6,563
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying [EUN- e - 3,345 2,000 464 5,809
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, BEEZL
Christina - 2,436 - 275 2,11
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan  ZES %4 - 27 - - 27
- 9,620 4,500 1,234 15,354
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e ORER BiRE
ik ENRER HERL SHEI R & A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET TET
2017 —F-tF
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BEBEAEE = 3,374 2,500 468 6,342
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying BN EE = 3,163 2,000 438 5,601
BRIGEE
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu (RZB—R%F
(resigned on 15 hA+EH
September 2016) BHT) = 120 = = 120
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, BEELL
Christina = 2,320 = 260 2,580
THLEE
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan (RZF—NE
(appointed on hAA+EH
15 September 2016) EZfA) = 138 = = 138
— 9,115 4,500 1,166 14,781
3 Mr. Chung is also the Chairman and the Chief Executive & BRETAARRANERE RITHAE
Officer of the Company. ES

136



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED &35 (B BR) =R B IR A Al

ANNUALREPORT 2018 =F—/N\F&FH

r’

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

The directors’ remuneration shown above does not
include the estimated monetary value of the
Group's owned premises provided rent-free to an
executive director, Mr. Chung, during the year. The
estimated rental value of such accommodation was
HK$184,000 (2017: HK$115,000) for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

8. EENRITHUAEEME »

(b) MITES#®)
AEENTEFANEEREXRE
MEEME S Z T HE -

ERFAIREEHES L RBEREN
MM TESELCERBEEENAE
BEEVMEZABE - BE_S
—N\F=BA=+—HLEHFE ZF
B2 LETH{EA184,0008 T (=&
—t % : 115,000 7T) °

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. hEZEaHMES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2017: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (2017: two) non-
director, highest paid employees for the year ended 31
March 2018 are set out below:

FN AaRSFHEESE=2(ZF
—tHE ZR)EF BRENREFMOF
BFEALXHESKE RBEE_F—/\
FZR=+—HLEER BHTWM&Z
T—tHF MBESHENFERRES
B EFFENT

2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and e RHREYEF
benefits in kind 4,027 3,753
Discretionary bonuses )15 76 41 1,500 1,000
Pension scheme contributions BIREEHEIH R 316 274
5,843 5,027
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MBEREERWE(E)

31 March 2018
—F—/NFE=ZF=+—H

10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

IEaREHMES @

MENFUTHEENRSFMIFESE
EMNHEBWT

Number of employees
EE®H

2018 2017

—B-)\F —B—tF

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

1,000,0017 7T £1,500,0007% 7T - S
1,500,001 7T E2,000,0007 7T - e
2,000,001 7T £2,500,000% 7T - 1
2,500,001 7T £3,000,0007% 7T
3,000,001 T £3,500,0007 7T

N | = =
-

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2017: Nil).

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
being effective on 1 January 2008, the corporate income
tax rate for all enterprises in Mainland China is 25%.

Moreover, under the relevant tax laws and regulations in
Mainland China, a company may set off losses incurred
by it in a financial year against profits made by it in the
succeeding financial year or years, subject to a maximum
of five financial years.
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MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. s @
2018 2017
—EF-)\F —F—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#&ET THET
Current tax charge for the year: AEENMHREZH
Hong Kong &5E 17,176 20,202
Elsewhere Hihith g 14,380 14,119
Underprovision of current tax in BEFENBERBEEERR
respect of prior years 2,358 3,305
Deferred (note 25) IEXE (K$5E25) 9,740 (7,590)
Total tax charge for the year AREEHREXXHER 43,654 30,036
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit BARUARB REXRE 2B B AL
before tax using the statutory rates for the tax BHNREREZEEEERETEZRKR
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of aflzMEXHEREERESEZ
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the MERX ZHIRWOT -
effective tax rate is as follows:
2018 2017
—B—)\F —E—tHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#&T THET
Profit before tax B 752 A1 3 A 273,666 185,155
Tax at the applicable rates to profit in %G BRI 5] A # = % 7
the tax jurisdictions concerned BRAZREFEZRIE 48,872 35,699
Adjustments in respect of current tax FtiBEFEEEERIEEL
of previous years B 2,358 3,305
Income not subject to tax BAEZFHRZIAN (9,046) (504)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARz EHR 4,103 1,298
Effect of withholding tax on the MIBAEEZHHKBLE
distributable profits of the Group's AMkafElRzEE
PRC subsidiaries 1,435 1,711
Tax losses utilised from previous BRI EEMNIREEE
periods (4,068) (6,240)
Tax loss not recognised RERRIEBE - 4,068
Others Hith - (9,301)
Tax charge at the Group's effective RAEEBEBRKRIIFEZ
rate MIEX H 43,654 30,036
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MEBERExME(E)
31 March 2018
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11. DIVIDENDS 1. 2
2018 2017
—B—)\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#&ET THET
Dividends paid during the year: FNEMEKE:
Final in respect of the financial BEZSE—TtHE=RB=+—
year ended 31 March 2017 HIEHRFEFERARS
— HK6 cents (2017: HK5 cents) — BT EKRE
per ordinary share (ZFB—t&F :581) 29,981 24,984
Interim — HK18 cents (2017: HK15  FHIKE — SKRZ&ERKR
cents) per ordinary share 187811
(ZF—tF : 15581l) 89,942 74,952
119,923 99,936
Proposed final dividend BOREKHE 2
HK12 cents (2017: HK6 cents) BREERI2EWL
per ordinary share (ZE—tF :6581) 59,962 29,981
The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the KEEZRLKRPAKREDEZERARSH
number of shares in issue as at the reporting date, and ERTZEMNBEE  WEGAQEK
is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders RREERRBFRAGHERAAEE -
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These ZEVBRBRREERREMKBERE -
financial statements do not reflect the final dividend
payable.
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. A BB ABESKRET

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company for the vyear of HK$230,012,000 (2017:
HK$155,119,000) and 499,680,000 (2017: 499,680,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017 as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during those years.
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13. PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2018

—F-/NEFE=ZF=+—H

13. % BB RRE

Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold Plant and and motor
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles
BE -
HELHR RE EE
B HENRER RSE wat
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TER TERT TERT
31 March 2018 —Z-)\§=H=+-H
Cost: BUA :
At beginning of year )| 703,728 111,221 245,061 68,520 1,128,530
Additions AE 2,257 48,843 54,944 10,913 116,957
Disposals farf5 (406) (567) - (2,288) (3,261)
Write-off b §ic) - (65) (1,078) - (1,143)
Exchange realignment FER AR 58,392 13,028 20,030 4,715 96,165
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F
=B=+—H 763,971 172,460 318,957 81,860 1,337,248
Accumulated depreciation: RERE:
At beginning of year 0 143,334 97,076 178,953 60,522 479,885
Provided during the year FERERE
(note 7) (FitE7) 25,365 7,690 17,157 3,774 53,986
Disposals HE (136) (567) - (2,284) (2,987
Write-off b §ic) - (65) (1,078) - (1,143)
Exchange realignment ERAE 13,012 9,652 12,318 3,766 38,748
At 31 March 2018 RZF—/)\F
=B=+—H 181,575 113,786 207,350 65,778 568,489
Net book value: BREHE
At 31 March 2018 RZBE-/\F=ZR=+—H 582,396 58,674 111,607 16,082 768,759
31 March 2017 —F—t&ZRA=+—H
Cost: BUA :
At beginning of year F4) 701,128 118,917 241,376 71,689 1,133,110
Additions HE 37,914 3372 18,501 5,157 64,944
Disposals HE (2,438) (4,967) (4,607) (5,847) (17,859)
Exchange realignment ERAE (32,876) (6,101) (10,209) (2,479) (51,665)
At 31 March 2017 RZB-—t&F
=B=+—H 703,728 111,221 245,061 68,520 1,128,530
Accumulated depreciation: 2BHE:
At beginning of year ) 127,846 102,523 175,020 64,108 469,497
Provided during the year FNEE
(note 7) (B EE7) 23,684 4,954 13,138 4,449 46,225
Disposals HE (2,030) (4,930) (2,693) (5,836) (15,489)
Exchange realignment ERRE (6,166) (5,471) (6,512) (2,199) (20,348)
At 31 March 2017 RZF—tH=A=+—H 143,334 97,076 178,953 60,522 479,885
Net book value: BRENFE -
At 31 March 2017 RZIZ—tH£=A=+—H 560,394 14,145 66,108 7,998 648,645
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MEBESRWE(EF)
31 March 2018
—Eg—-/NEFE=Z/F=+—H
14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. FEF L HEERIE
2018 2017
—EF-)\F —F—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THET
Carrying amount at beginning of year E4#]REE 59,541 67,795
Amortisation recognised B R SR A B
during the year (note 7) (B 5E7) (2,037) (2,072)
Disposals HE (818) (2,218)
Exchange realignment BE &2 F 2 6,333 (3,964)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—BHZKHE 63,019 59,541
Current portion included in FEATEMNRIE  REREM
prepayments, deposits and other & I FIE Z BN EA 2R
receivables (note 15) (ftsE15) (2,142) (1,962)
Non-current portion JEENEAER 92 60,877 57,579
One of the Group's prepaid land lease payments with a AEBHEF —IHREF{E1,480,000% JT
net book value of HK$1,480,000 (2017: HK$1,361,000), (ZF—t 5 :1,361,0008 7T) 2 AR
together with the leasehold buildings thereon, has been WHENE  ERELNEEEFREN
provided as rent-free accommodation to Mr. Chung, an REERAELE (ARE—E2BTER) 2
executive director of the Company during the year. RIEERS
15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

15. zi'li;ﬁ%zlﬁ EBEREMELW

2018 2017
—E—)\&§F —E—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 T#&ET TET
Prepaid land lease payments M T HEERE 14 2,142 1,962
Prepayments AT IE 32,018 25,334
Deposits and other receivables & & K H 1th FE KL 35,877 44,745
70,037 72,041
Less: Non-current portion of B EEYE BEX
deposits for purchases of HEEEN
items of property, plant FEENHE D IiRE
and equipment (13,937) (22,112)
56,100 49,929
None of the financial assets included in the above TRERBENERMEEN FafsR

balances is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.
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16. GOODWILL

Notes to Financial Statements (cun inued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2018
—EF-/NF=ZF=+—H

16. &

B A{E & EREE ¢
REDRFLR

Cost and carrying amount:
At beginning and end of year

2018 2017
—E—)\&§F —E—tF
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHEIT FETT
26,112 26,112

The Group's goodwill was wholly allocated to a cash-
generating unit engaged in the manufacture and trading
of sportswear and garments (the “Unit”). The
recoverable amount of the Unit has been determined
from the value in use, which is calculated with reference
to cash flow projections based on a five-year period
financial budget approved by senior management. The
financial budgets are prepared reflecting actual and prior
year performance and development expectations. The
key assumptions for the cash flow projections are the
budgeted gross margin which is the average gross profit
margin achieved in the year immediately before
budgeted years and the discount rate of 18% (2017:
20%), which is before tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the Unit. The cash flow projections are
prepared based on the assumption that the Unit will
have revenue based on the actual sales order amount
and revenue forecasted by the head of the sales
department for the first year, and then maintains a 3%
(2017: 3%) growth rate thereafter. The directors believe
that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of the Unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount. Since the recoverable amount of the Unit is
higher than its carrying amount, the directors consider
there was no impairment of the goodwill at the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BERRMI(E)
31 March 2018
—FE—/\E=Z/F=+—H
17. INVENTORIES 17. &8
2018 2017
—E—)\F —EF—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Raw materials FEM 183,805 133,443
Work in progress T8 & 114,285 104,401
Finished goods B4 RN i 83,895 58,808
381,985 296,652
18. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. EIRERA R E 8

The Group's accounts and bills receivables mainly relate
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers. The
credit period is generally for a period of 30 to 45 days
(2017: 30 to 45 days). The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
the credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by the management of the Group. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit managements over its
accounts and bills receivables balances. The accounts
and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing. At the end
of the reporting period, 75% (2017: 59%) and 23%
(2017: 34%) of the total accounts and bills receivables
were due from the Group's largest customer and the
second largest customer, respectively.

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivables
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

AEEZEWERAZBRETZHETR
AREERITFNEFER - S8H—%5
30K E45R (ZE—+H £ : 30KE45K) °
AEEROE R EER KRG ERT
BEEE  BEERBEHEREKE -
BHERNZERBASEEEECHE
B AEBNAREERRFEZERE
KRR EMINREEEE - EIKER
RAREBAGCEIRNR - RBEHR &
BRAREEFZAEBEENIGAER
EWMERA R EBEEISN (ZF—tF
59% ) ’%23% (ZF—1H4F :34% ) °

BEARSHILEZBRERRZERIE
LEHHNRR2TAOT

2018 2017

—g-)N\F —_E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#&ET THET

Within 30 days 30K 179,753 114,153
31 to 60 days 31E60K 14,312 7,168
61 to 90 days 61FE90K 30,024 1,746
Over 90 days 90K I 9,983 2,384
234,072 125,451
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18. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivables
that are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEBRWE(R)

31 March 2018

—F-/NEFE=ZF=+—H

18. EINERFA R EE »

ANERBENEKRERR R RIRRE DT

nE

2018 2017
B )\F —E—t &
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&ET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired B 4% 8 HA 7N SRR (B 190,866 119,264
Past due: EHA

Within 30 days 30K 6,867 3,167
31 to 60 days 31E60K 33,100 674
61 to 90 days 61FE90K 1,574 1,407
Over 90 days 90K U k£ 1,665 939
234,072 125,451

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate SR 380 HA 78 AR (B O FE IR BR R - B T HA i

to customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of customers that have a good track
records with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2018
—F—/NFE=ZF=+—H

19. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE AND 19.
CASH AND BANK BALANCES

S

JfE T 45 BR IR & % SR

JidH

A

R
&

2018 2017
B )\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FHBT
Cash and bank balances ReRIBITHEER 225,509 290,934
Less: Restricted bank balance for B RPEAREEOREN
import purchases in Mainland 52 PR #l 8R 17 45 &R
China (2,639) &
222,870 290,934
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RBER  AEBUARB(ARK])
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi E‘HEE’\JIﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ%@%%139,567,000%
(“RMB”) amounted to HK$139,567,000 (2017: T (Z & —+ 4 : 265,377,000 TT) °
HK$265,377,000). RMB is not freely convertible into REASEHERAHMER - ,mﬁﬂE}fﬁ
other currencies. However, under Mainland China’'s FR B K S 9 0 BE B ERAR 1) L R 45 B - BB
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration ENEBEERTE  AEEENEZBER
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange EMBEAEEBRZETEARBRR A
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB HiEH -

for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on FERIBTNEcEREARTERINEZ
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are FEEXRIAR AEERANKRER
made for varying periods of between one day and three ZEH—BEZE=EAMNEHTEHER ' I
months depending on the immediate cash requirements 3 Bl ¥ 58 HA 7E B 77 SRR R BRENF B o $R1T
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short FERRZREABRITERIERRAGE
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and BRI 8 R RFC 8k Z R 1T ©

restricted bank balance are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 20. & {1+ BRFX
An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end RBEPRRZEMERBEEZEBEHEN
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BRI :
follows:

2018 2017
B )\F —E—tH
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&ET FET
Within 90 days 90K KN 143,246 123,921
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 1,523 3,419
181 to 365 days 181E365K 147 3,398
Over 365 days 365K X £ 851 4,546
145,767 135,284
The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are ENERAEERR EEH —MRKA4I5
normally settled on 45-day terms. Zx ©
21. BANKING FACILITIES 21. IR{TEAREE
As at 31 March 2018, the Group's banking facilities were A_F—/)\F=ZA=+—H ' AE£EWIR
supported by the corporate guarantees executed by the THEREEURRARANBETHEL
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company to the AEVIHNAAEREIF HLERA
extent of HK$627,100,000 (2017: HK$647,750,000), of 627,100,000/ 7T (ZF—+t £ : 647,750,000
which an aggregate amount of HK$196,800,000 (2017: BIT) HAFE A& $£196,800,0005 JT (=
HK$143,050,000) was utilised. E—-+t % : 143,050,000 JT) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEZF=+—H

22. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER

23.

22. Bt & B & H fih FE 4 IR

PAYABLES
2018 2017
=B )\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other payables H b &+ 5r18 47,950 31,211
Accruals FEst&E A 62,318 53,629
110,268 84,840

Other payables of the Group as at 31 March 2018
included a subsidy of HK$2,253,000 (2017:
HK$2,677,000) received from the People's Government
of Yifeng County, Jiangxi Province, the PRC for the
construction cost of basic infrastructure by the Group for
the development of the investment project in Jiangxi (the
“Jiangxi Project”). During the year, an amount of
HK$424,000 (2017: HK$603,000) was utilised and has
been offset against the construction cost.

AEBRZIZFE—/)\E=ZB=+—HWH
HEMHRESERAFBETIAEEZEHA
R AT B W BY2,253,0008 T (Z T —+
£ : 2,677,000 7)) NER - (FEAAEH
M ThrREEE(PCIAEB)NER
BEBERAK - F N E & F424,000%
o (ZF—+ F : 603,000 75) I DL 2 5

INTEREST-BEARING BANK 23. (tRIWITEM
BORROWINGS
2017
“B—tF
Effective interest HK$'000
rate (%) BRFE (%) Maturity E/HH FET
Current 1D
Bank loans IRITER 1.42% to 2.50%  1.42%FE2.50% On demand BEEX 196,800 143,050

(2017: 1.02% to (Es=4:
1.77%) 1.02%%E
1.77%)
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23.

24.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROW'NGS (continued)

As at 31 March 2018, all of the bank borrowings of
HK$196,800,000 (2017: HK$143,050,000) were supported
by corporate guarantees executed by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2018, HK$47,100,000 (2017:
HK$38,750,000) of the bank borrowings were
denominated in USS$.

Based on the maturity terms of the bank borrowings, the
amounts repayable in respect of the bank borrowings are
analysed as follows:

23.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

FEETER®

RZE—/\EF=H=+—H - 196,800,000
Bt (ZF—+t &F 1 143,050,000 JT) 19
RITEELHEARANARARNTE THEB
NEBEMNNABEREIF-

RZFB—-N\F=ZA=+—H " RITEEH
47,100,0007 7T (= F—+t £ : 38,750,000
BIT)LLETTEHE -

RIBRTERZERY  RITERENE
BT

2018 2017
=B )\F —F—tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Analysed into: ati =
Within one year and on demand —FRNREEX 196,800 143,050
PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION 24. BIKEsTEIAE

The Group provides benefits for its employees of its
subsidiary in Indonesia who achieve the retirement age
of b5 years based on the provisions of the Indonesian
Labour Law Number 13/2003, through an unfunded
pension plan.

The plan is exposed to salary increase risk, interest rate
risk and the risk of changes in life expectancy.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value
of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at 31
March 2018 by Biro Pusat Aktuaria, an independent
actuary with a licence from the Indonesia Ministry of
Finance, using the projected unit credit method.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRME(E)
31 March 2018
—®— )\ E=5=+—H

24. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION

(continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

24. BIRESTEI&AIE @

RESHRARAZEZRERRAT ¢

2018 2017
—F-)\£F —F—tF
Discount rate (%) BHIR (%) 7.69 7.89
Expected rate of salary increase (%) TFEET#H &R ZE(%) 7.0 7.0
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant RBPEHER  EABRBRZEEHREST
assumptions as at the end of the reporting period is FIRMT
shown below:
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
net defined net defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligation in rate obligation
REEH REEFH
EEFE SEFE
kR EA M GRY) HERTE  Em GEd)
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
THET THET
2018 —EB-)\F
Discount rate A 37 = 1 (2,499) 1 3,153
Future salary increase KR F &L 1 3,143 1 (2,534)
2017 —B—tF
Discount rate A 37 = 1 (1,831) 1 2,322
Future salary increase KR F &L 0 1 2,319 1 (1,860)
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24. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION

(continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on net
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a
change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated
income statement in respect of the plan are as follows:

24.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

BIKEETEIAE @

ERHBRESIWDIRBEETELEHRRIR
BRENREERRE A B HERR
FEERRZTEZTTEMETE - BUXE
DD EREMEHMEBRTIEZHOEB R
TR—EEABRRONEMET - BURE
D RDRTEBENEEOERKE -
AZEBRRNNBEETGERRLE -

MZAENGEERERERZHAIBER
LI

2018 2017

B )\F —E—t&F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ET FHBT

Current service cost RERBERA 3,490 2,813

Past service cost B A RB A - (202)

Interest cost F B A 789 518

Net benefit expenses wBHREXFE 4,279 3,129

Recognised in cost of sales TR & B AN HE R 3,559 2,638
Recognised in administrative RATBR X R

expenses 720 491

4,279 3,129
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZHF=+—H

24. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION 24. BIR &5 EI&E @)
(continued)
The movements in the present value of the defined TREBEMNETHREZEESHOT :

benefit obligation are as follows:

2018 2017
—B-)\F —E—tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 April RIEE—H 10,033 6,239
Current service cost RERBER A 3,490 2,813
Past service cost 18 & AR 75 B AR - (202)
Interest cost B REA 789 518
Actuarial losses BEEIE 4 765
Benefits paid E 18 #l (53) (72)
Exchange differences bE 2 E 58 (312) (28)
At 31 March A=HA=+—H 13,951 10,033
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as EHEBINSEZELEANT ¢
follows:
2018 —F-)\E

Remeasurement (gains)/losses
Pension cost charged to the income statement in other comprehensive income

REBRMBZERERE At eERHZ BN E (Ki)/FR

Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from  arising from included
included in changes in  changes in in other Exchange
Service Net  the income Benefits financial  experience comprehensive differences on 31 March
cost interest statement paid assumptions adjustments income  a foreign plan 2018

R BBRR aRag
Z8-tf FABER 2HELZ £HEE  HARb2E L yiEg
mA—-H RERE HERE 2Vt Eft&EH REEH NEEED gz vt ERZR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

Defined benefit obligation ~ EEBAEE 10033 3490 789 4279 (53) 557 (553) 4 (312) 13,951
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

24. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION 24. BIRETEIEIE @
(continued)
2017 —_F—tHF

Remeasurement (gains|/losses

Pension cost charged to the income statement in other comprehensive income

REERNBZBRERE HteEKREZENGE(RE)/BR
Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from arising from included
included in changes in changes in in other Exchange

1 April Service Net  the income Benefits financial experience  comprehensive  differences on 31 March
2016 cost interest statement paid  assumptions  adjustments income  a foreign plan 2017
S
R’ HBER BRAE 5-t%
3-N%E FABER EPELY EHEL FAEMES Bt R =)
mA—-H RHBEA fIS2E 2Nt EfEA BE2® MEERY BEREZNG ERZ®E Z=1-AH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TET TET TET TET TER TET TET
Defined benefit obligation EERAESL 6,239 2,611 518 3,129 (72) 804 (39) 765 (28) 10,033

SEBEEREZATFEZEEZENAT :

The major categories of the fair value of the total plan
assets are as follows:

2018 2017

—B-)\F ZE—p4E

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT FET

Equity instruments BEATHE N/A REH N/A 73 F
Debt instruments BHITE N/A REHA N/A 7~3E F
Property L/ES N/A REHA N/A & F

Expected contributions to be made in the future years
out of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

ARBFZEBREBHNEEERBHRER

LI

2018 2017

—B-)\F —B—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ET TFET

Within the next 12 months KER12B ™ - g
Between 2 and 5 years 2E 55 48 48
Between 5 and 10 years 5E 1045 1,520 1,520
Over 10 years 10 £ 871,719 818,675
Total expected payments AR AR ER 873,287 820,243

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period is 20.25 years (2017:

19.28 years).
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MBHRME(E)
31 March 2018
—F—/NFE=ZF=+—H

25. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax
liabilities of the Group during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax asset

25. IEERIE
AEERENNBEEREEERETH
HAERENT

BIEWRIBEE

Losses available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profits

o] F LU 85
RIRFEFRR
HIE B
HK$'000
THET
At 1 April 2016 AZEFE—NFMHAB—H =
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FENFAZEERETETN
income statement during the year (note 10) EERIE (KFEE10) 9,301
Exchange realignment BE &2 3 2 (205)
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZFBE—tHE=HF=+—H
k—_EFE—tFMWBE—H 9,096
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FENEREREKZOKRB
income statement during the year (note 10) EEMIE (M 5E10) (7,911)
Exchange realignment b R F B 510
At 31 March 2018 R-FB—-/\E=RA=+—H 1,695
Deferred tax liabilities BIEREEEF
Withholding
taxes on
Accelerated undistributed
tax Asset profits of PRC
depreciation  revaluation subsidiaries Total
N E =N
IR IE R 5K v F
e BEEM ZEN®K wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHETT FHETT
At 1 April 2016 RIF—R
FMAE—H 180 9,429 4,169 13,778
Deferred tax charged FRNEHFEREE
to the consolidated BRIEER B
income statement during (Ff$5E10)
the year (note 10) = = 1,711 1,711
Withholding tax on FH [ i /& 2 B BE W
repatriation of earnings M EMFENR
from subsidiaries
in the PRC = S (1,939) (1,939)
Exchange realignment BE &2 3 B — (565) — (565)
At 31 March 2017 R=ZF—t&=H
=l 180 8,864 3,941 12,985
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25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

25. EIERIE )

Withholding
taxes on
Accelerated undistributed
tax Asset profits of PRC
depreciation revaluation subsidiaries
o = fft [ 22 A
IERIE K 53 i = Fl
e BEEM ZEMNR st
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TEXT TEXT
At 1 April 2017 RIE—tHF
A—H 180 8,864 3,941 12,985
Deferred tax charged FNERERER
to the consolidated 0 BR HYIE ZE TR B
income statement during (Bftz£10)
the year (note 10) 394 - 1,435 1,829
Withholding tax on A =] {8 2 B BE
repatriation of earnings FENENR
from subsidiaries in the
PRC - - (467) (467)
Exchange realignment BE fo A 28 969 - 969
At 31 March 2018 R-ZF—/)\F=H
= —H 574 9,833 4,909 15,316

Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings accrued after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 5% (2017: 5%). In
estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected
to be distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008, the directors have made an assessment
based on the factors which included the dividend policy
and the level of capital and working capital required for
the Group’s operations in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with the investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$41,120,000 (2017:
HK$27,918,000).

in
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REFERE  RPEKERLZIINEE
BEhEMIEREETERZKZEBHEE
K10%FEHNK - ZEERZ-_FF/\EFE—H
—BER LERR_SFEtE+-A
=t+—HEBEEZEF] - {#4 E KR E
B EE 2B EE BRI RBRL - AIF
FBEEERENRRE AEEZERR
EHBH5% (ZTE—LF 5% ) c EHF=ZEF
FEAXERIRBARGR -EF/\F—
A—HBELENRAEHIKEKR ST
METEILIRE  EECTEEEREEE
FEJRARAEDLEEMNTEARE
BEEGKTERE - AR ECERBER
MR EAXERBARZEENTRFEE
EEEE LB 411200008 T(Z F
—+t £ : 27,918,000 7T) °
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MBERRME(R)
31 March 2018
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25.

DEFERRED TAX (continuea)

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Mainland
China of HK$6,781,000 (2017: HK$36,383,000), that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has estimated tax
losses arising in Indonesia of HK$16,271,000. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised during that year in
respect of losses of HK$16,271,000 as the directors

25

EERIE 2
AEBMBEHROEABEE T REFES
6,781,000 7t (— | — + £ : 36,383,000
BTSN EENTIE - FEREE®E
PR A o A B 10 E IR B R 5t R S A
WA FFERER -

AEBR-_E—tFE=ZBA=+—HHE:
RENEE & 2 1 18 B 18 316,271,000
T HREERATETEE RHNERR
AR EAF ANRIEEE  FIUZERN

consider that it is uncertain whether sufficient taxable i & 516,271,000 T B B HE R IR ER
profits will be available against which the tax losses can EEE o
be utilised.
26. ISSUED CAPITAL 26. EZTIRE
2018 2017
—EB—)\&§F R =g 4E
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#&ET TFET
Authorised: EERA
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,0008%
of HK$0.01 each FKREE0IBITZ
o R 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EZITRHAR :
499,680,000 ordinary shares 499,680,0008%
of HK$0.01 each FKREE0.01EITTZ
@R 4,997 4,997
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27. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value
of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) in August 2003, and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor and the existing 1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each credited as fully paid, at par.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations,
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
transfer a certain portion of their profits after tax, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve, until the balance of the
reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus reserve
may be used to offset against accumulated losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRNE(H)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NF=ZF=+—H

i
FEERAFERBEEFEZ#EBESR
REBBHFBERMBRRDZEGED
BERZET -

FEEERARFEREEARIRBE-ST=
FENRBZEBEHRA(EHR]D)FWEWNS
AENBRAEERSE  BRERT2EAR
B lr A HE {5 & 3 H1,000,0008% & K& HE &
0.0VBTEENRIEHERNEZE

REBETEREG  EFEZMOKBL
BAKFE THMONRREEN (RHEE
AARPET) BEREATREGMHE EE
ZRENEREIESBEMELR0% -
EERTERGMEETREBRT - &
EEGHEEBITBFERERBEERE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2018
—EF-/NEZF=+—H

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 28. MEHERERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions FEFRERD
(i) Deregistration of a subsidiary (i) EEH—FHE L A
2018
—B-\F
HK$'000
TET
Net liabilities disposed of: FrHEMNaEFRE :
Other receivable H 1t FE IR 19
Accounts payable FE {3 BR 3R (1,737)
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEst & B Rk E M FE T =UE (8,468)
Tax payable & {4 R 18 (4,785)
(14,971)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve ERREFE 2 RIR (32,128)
HH—ENB ARz =
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary (note 7) (Bt aE7) (47,099)
There was no net inflow/outflow of cash and cash FENLEGHEFHIBARNER
equivalents in respect of the deregistration of a ERESEEBEERNREFE -

subsidiary during the year.
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(ii) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

Notes to Financial Statements (cuminued)

MEBRWE(R)

31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

28. LEHERERMF @

FEFHRERS @)
(i) BEZHELNEEEE

Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings

FFRMITEM
HK$’000
FERT

At 1 April 2017 RZF—tFMA—H 143,050
Financing cash flows MERERE 53,200
Non-cash changes FEH & F

Effect of changes in foreign exchange PEREE) 2 & 550
At 31 March 2018 R-B—/N\F=F=+—H 196,800

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities not provided for at the end of the reporting
period (2017: Nil).

As at 31 March 2018, corporate guarantees to banks to
the extent of HK$627,100,000 (2017: HK$647,750,000)
were given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of
the Company for banking facilities granted to the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company, which
were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$196,800,000 (2017: HK$143,050,000) at the end of
the reporting period (note 21).
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29. HAEE
RBEHR  AEBXETAERERHZ
EAFARBEBE(ZE—HF 8|) o

RIB—/)\E=ZB=+—0 ' x_8T KA
ABETHBLE @R IMTIEMH
627,100,000 TT(Z &| +t F:
647,750,000/ 70) A EIER - LIS IEF
APNERANBDETHBASNIRTE
BEE EFRBEHERERBY
196,800,000 JT(= = S e
143,050,000 70 ) (Bf5E21) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEZF=+—H

30. COMMITMENTS 30. i
The Group had the following capital commitments at the AEEBRBEHERZELRAENOT

end of the reporting period:

2018 2017
B )\F —E—t&
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: EFT&EREE
Construction of factories and BRIREBZKE
purchases of machinery and REEHBREE
equipment for the Jiangxi Project 2,236 14,471
Purchases of machinery and AHNEREEEEEHSS
equipment for the investment REE
project in Indonesia 912 2,578
Purchases of items of machinery EERBERZEEE
and equipment 13,636 4,006
16,784 21,055
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  31. BliEA L% 5
The directors are the key management personnel of the ESAAEBEZFEEEAS - REFM
Group. Details of their remuneration are disclosed in ZEFBER M B RRM S EE -
note 8 to the financial statements.
32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 32. M T A4S
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of BESMITARKSHRNERENT :
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:
Financial assets — Loans and receivables EMEE — EMKREWEREMR
2018 2017
B )\F§F —E—t&
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&T TFET
Accounts and bills receivables BRI R EE 234,072 125,451
Financial assets included in SINTEMRIE  REREHM
prepayments, deposits and EWHRHN &R E E
other receivables 8,215 10,130
Restricted bank balance 5% PR &l 8R 17 45 B8R 2,639 —
Cash and bank balances ReRiBITHEER 222,870 290,934
467,796 426,515
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

33.

CAT EG ORY (continued)

Financial liabilities — Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

32.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2018
—EF-/NEFEZF=+—H

EMIESE @

EMEHE — REERFTIRN R
&

2018 2017

—E—)\F —E—tHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT THET

Accounts payable FE 14 BR R 145,767 135,284
Financial liabilities included in accrued 5 \ F& & & f& K H i & f 3¢

liabilities and other payables ENEmMAR 39,397 23,069

Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRIBITER 196,800 143,050

381,964 301,403

The directors consider the carrying amounts of all
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost approximate to their fair values as at the
end of the reporting period largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’'s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and bank
balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, available-for-sale investments,
restricted bank balance, accounts payable and financial
liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.
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33.

EERA RESHX mEREBEME
FENEREERCMABARTEER
NFEEE  RBERZFLENIEE

MHEEEEERZ BERBUER

FEENIECHIBEGREFRRITE
RERBERIRITER ZFEMITRZE
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MBHRME(E)
31 March 2018
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. WERAKREEZEHERKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
liquidity risk and credit risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-
bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risk. The interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash
and bank balances are stated at amortised cost and not
revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest
income and expenses are credited/charged to the income
statement as earned/incurred.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's net profit
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

=
(«f?ﬁ/

AEEERMIBEZTERRLKRENEX
Rk - SMEREER - MEBEERRREER
B-EEgERLHEEESEGRER
ZBUR - BART

I 2= [ B
AEEMARZT BN RBHEREE
HASEEZIBANRFRBNIRITEER
o

FEEEHEELERIEEEUERE
HARER - st RIRTERRBEERIRT
BRRBERANER MAGEHERS -
FEMBRARZHRBERZERR
EEA FLUER BR -

Had(AFZREETE)HAXRZGHE
7] fE S B Y UK K -

Increase in
interest rate Decrease
(basis points) in net profit
Fl == 100 (B Bh) 4 R D
HK$'000
TH&T
2018 —E—)\& 100 1,643
2017 _B—tHF 100 1,194
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from a substantial portion of sales or
purchases by operating units in United States Dollars
("US$") and RMB. As the foreign currency risk arising
from sales and purchases can be set off with each other
given that the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US$, the
Group believes its exposure to exchange rate risk is
minimal. It is the policy of the Group to continue
maintaining the balance of its sales and purchases in the
same currency. However, as the functional currency of
the PRC subsidiaries is RMB and the Group’s financial
statements are reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will
be a translation credit/(debit) to the exchange fluctuation
reserve as a result of RMB appreciation/(depreciation).
The majority of the Group’s operating assets are located
in Mainland China and denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors the
foreign exchange exposures and will consider hedging
the significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BBEHRRME(E)
31 March 2018
—®— )\ E=F=+—H

33. WHRBEE ZBERKEK

(43
(&)

4hEE = B&

AEEARRZGERKEAR - BAREARBEE
BEMUET(ET)RARKETE
BEE4A BRBTHEXTHIE BEEL
ZHERBRAEARRE  AEERER
SNERBREER - ARBASEEERER
ERETEEZFEBER - A - HRF
ENEABUARBANEERRAE
BZHMBHRRIIUBTER  BAREH
B/ (RE)SFELEFAGIRE) EX
RERENERERE ASEXITEE
EEHURFBERE  WUAREE-

AEB B EIER PR - AT B
ERERNERR TEEAFERHT
EARINEREE

TRIITAREKERRBESIRA AL
Bzt ES(MEAMBERETE)

change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other MBAEBMAF ZHEAE (HREBEE
variables held constant, of the Group's net profit (due to kEaBELFEEZE) :
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities):
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
exchange rate in net profit
EXLHA “EFIEI,
(T ()
HK$'000
TFHET
2018 —_E—)\F
If HK$ strengthens against RMIB HWE TR AREAE 3% (719)
If HK$ weakens against RMB HWETREARKRE (3%) 719
2017 —_F—tHF
If HK$ strengthens against RMB HWE TR AREAE 3% (311)
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT ARKRE (3%) 311
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. WBREBEE ZEHERBER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued (%)
Liquidity risk MENE & RS
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEBFEFHKEEERDESHFEE THE
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the RESHRZARK ZEIEFEZESH
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial TEkTMEE(NEREREER)Z
assets (e.g., accounts and bills receivables) and the FHBER UREETRZEERERE
projected cash flows from operations. i
The Group maintains a balance between continuity of AEEZEBRFEAGERRTERREMIE
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing THREE #REESFEHREREEN
bank borrowings and other banking facilities. The ZENFE EFERNAEBNEEER
directors have reviewed the Group's working capital and EREARATHETKR R RAEELEE
capital expenditure requirements and determined that the AMREE SRR -

Group has no significant liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as RBER  AEEERBESAI R A
at the end of the reporting period, based on the RtEZESRMAaBEIHBRAOT :

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

On demand or within one year

BERE—FN
2018 2017
—B-)\F ZEg—ap4E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TFET
Accounts payable FE 14 BR 3R 145,767 135,284

Financial liabilities included in accrued %I A\ & 5t & {& K H th fE 1

liabilities and other payables RENESRMEAERE 39,397 23,069
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRIBITER 197,066 143,154
382,230 301,507
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is generally no
requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’'s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 March 2018 and 2017.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which

is total current assets divided by total current liabilities.
The Group's policy is to keep the current ratio above 1.
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33. WHRBEE ZBERKEK

(43
(&)

EERE
AEHEERITAEERITFNE=FE
ARG - AEEZTHUBREARXR I
EEFETEESEE - I BRFUES
BRTEEFEER-

HRAEBEEIIREERFINE=
FETRS  H—RIERX TEFIGEHK
TEFI on °

FEBHEMERNEE(BERERERRTE
BRBEMNRE  BRERHMERRIERE
BNEMEE) ZEERRTREHTR
BENR - FIARZEXEABRBERZEL
BZREE-

EXxEH
FEEEBERAZTEBRARELRE
EREUFEREELEZEN  UEKE
REREFRERAKF  DUAHEBRM
XFERESKRREHR-

FEERECERTSBRBREEZ
RERSHEERREARBERELAR - B
METGREREARE  AKETRARE
XN FHRREZES  BERRZEEEANE
Tk REEZF-/\FRZF—tF
ZR=+t—HLFEN BREEELZ
BE BURSEFILELZE -

AEBELURB LR (LB REEEBRUAR
MEBABEHNE) BEHELR FAEBZK
RABRELLEEFNIBL EZKF -
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

34.

EREIMBIRRR

BERAREBRBEHRRNMBRIRN

AR

2018 2017
—B—)\£F = kd—ap iz
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBAB ZHE 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Due from subsidiaries & I B I 2 A 1,727,109 1,624,836
Loan to a subsidiary ERT—EHBEAR 39,500 4,500
Prepayments TE A FRIE 249 109
Cash and bank balances & K IR1T 48R 970 365
Total current assets MBI EEMEE 1,767,828 1,629,810
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEfE
Due to subsidiaries ER BT 954,554 867,965
Accrued liability [Esta®’ 24 —
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRIBITER 39,500 4,500
Tax payable FE& T #18 1,697 1,276
Total current liabilities mEAaBERE 995,775 873,741
NET CURRENT ASSETS WMENE ERE 772,053 756,069
Net assets BEFRE 815,421 799,437
EQUITY B
Issued capital ERITERA 4,997 4,997
Reserves (note) ER A ED) 810,424 794,440
Total equity BEXRBE 815,421 799,437
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 34. XNEIMBIRRAR @
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: fE 5 -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RN EZMEDT :
Share
premium Capital Retained
Note account reserve profits Total
B {7
ff 5 HHER BEXREE BEBF st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FHEIT THET

At 1 April 2016 RZB—ANFHMAB—H 472,586 43,088 236,077 751,751
Profit and total comprehensive FEPEF RS E K23

income for the year = = 142,625 142,625
Final 2016 dividend “E-NERBERR 11 = — (24,984) (24,984)
Interim 2017 dividend -t FHHERE 11 — i (74,952) (74,952)
At 31 March 2017 and R-ZB—tF£=A8

1 April 2017 =+—Hk

—F—tHFmMA—H 472,586 43,088 278,766 794,440

Profit and total comprehensive FEPERF R E K= AR

income for the year — — 135,907 135,907
Final 2017 dividend TE-LFERHAKRE 11 = = (29,981) (29,981)
Interim 2018 dividend —E-)\FHHERE 11 = = (89,942) (89,942)
At 31 March 2018 R-IB—\&F

=B=+—H 472,586 43,088 294,750 810,424

The capital reserve of the Company represents the AKNBEBEAFEBIEANGIBEEHTIK
excess of the then consolidated net assets of the ENEBANEEENGEESEERE BHAE
subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the WEBETZAANTERAEEZEXE - BRiEH
Reorganisation over the nominal value of the share SHENGE  BRAEEBEITDIRFANE
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor. BE EREEESRMNEEHERE &
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the NEHBREEEE 2R PIHAGEE o

capital reserve may be distributed to the shareholders of
the Company, provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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35.

36.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company on 29
March 2018, 3 April 2018, 27 April 2018 and 1 June
2018, a sale and purchase agreement was entered into
between the Group and Pro Kingtex Industrial Company
Limited, an indirectly non-wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue
Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company on 29 March 2018,
whereby the Group has agreed to purchase 100% equity
interests of Year Fortune Group Limited and Faith Year
Investments Limited and their respective branch and
subsidiaries, for a consideration of US$31,617,998
(approximately HK$246.6 million). The acquisition was
completed on 1 June 2018. These acquired companies
are mainly engaged in investment holding and
manufacturing of textile products.

Due to the timing of the transaction, the Group is still
assessing the financial impact on the Group.
Accordingly, certain disclosures in relation to the
business combination have not been presented.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors of the Company on
21 June 2018.
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35.

36.

RERRNEIR

BEBEAXBAR-F—/\E=AZ+NH"
“F-)\FHHWBA=ZH ZF—/\F@WEA
“t+tBERZF-/N\NEXNA—HFEDN
rE RIZB—/N\E=ZAZ+HH K&
BHEMTIE(EB)BRAE (RXAEE
ERF)NEEELENE 2 AP0
Kingtex Industrial Company Limiteds] iz
BEEWE Bl AEBRBEEKEYear
Fortune Group LimitedfFaith Year
Investments Limited AR E&B DR A K
M B N 3 MI00%kk # K & %A
31,617,998 7T (#9246.6 8 B & 7T) ° K
BERZ-F—/\EXB—HZEK -ZZFE
KWEABTEXBGREREERREES

o o
ERR5EE  AEENEFZHAER

WHBTE - FHit - WERSHEEBESH
FRNETHREESY -

MEBHRR L E

MERRERZ-F-/\NFA=+—H
ERXRBESTEHELRERNT -
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